
1

Agenda
Contact Officer: Steve Culliford
Tel: 01235 422522
E-mail: steve.culliford@southandvale.gov.uk
Date: 28 March 2018
Website: www.southoxon.gov.uk

A MEETING OF THE

Cabinet

WILL BE HELD ON THURSDAY 5 APRIL 2018 AT 6.00 PM

MEETING ROOM 1, 135 EASTERN AVENUE, MILTON PARK, MILTON, 
OX14 4SB

Members of the Cabinet
Member Portfolio
John Cotton (Chairman) Leader of the Council and Cabinet member for 

partnership and insight
Felix Bloomfield Cabinet member for planning
Elizabeth Gillespie Cabinet member for housing and environment
Tony Harbour Cabinet member for legal and democratic services, plus 

Didcot Garden Town
Lynn Lloyd Cabinet member for community services
David Nimmo-Smith Cabinet member for development and regeneration
Robert Simister Cabinet member for corporate services
John Walsh Deputy Leader and Cabinet member for finance

Alternative formats of this publication are available on request.  These 
include large print, Braille, audio, email and easy read.  For this or any 
other special requirements (such as access facilities) please contact 
the officer named on this agenda.  Please give as much notice as 
possible before the meeting.

ITEMS TO BE CONSIDERED WITH THE PUBLIC PRESENT

Reports considered with the public present are available on the council’s website.

Public Document Pack



2

1 Apologies for absence  

To record apologies for absence.  

2 Minutes  (Pages 3 - 8)

To adopt and sign as a correct record the minutes of the Cabinet meeting held on 
12 February 2018.  

3 Declaration of disclosable pecuniary interest  

To receive any declarations of disclosable pecuniary interests in respect of items on 
the agenda for this meeting.  

4 Urgent business and chairman's announcements  

To receive notification of any matters which the chairman determines should be 
considered as urgent business and the special circumstances which have made the 
matters urgent, and to receive any announcements from the chairman.  

5 Public participation  

To receive any questions or statements from members of the public that have 
registered to speak.  

CABINET DECISIONS

6 Public space protection order for Thame  (Pages 9 - 36)

To consider the report of the head of legal and democratic services.  

7 Wallingford Conservation Area  (Pages 37 - 80)

To consider the head of planning’s report.  

RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL

8 Dorchester-on-Thames Neighbourhood Plan  (Pages 81 - 84)

To consider the head of planning’s report.  

MARGARET REED

Head of Legal and Democratic



1

Minutes
OF A MEETING OF THE

Cabinet

HELD ON MONDAY 12 FEBRUARY 2018 AT 9.00 AM

MEETING ROOM 1, 135 EASTERN AVENUE, MILTON PARK, MILTON, 
OX14 4SB

Present:

Cabinet members: Councillors John Cotton (Chairman), Jane Murphy (Vice-
Chairman), Felix Bloomfield, Elizabeth Gillespie, Tony Harbour, Lynn Lloyd, and 
Robert Simister

Officers: Gerry Brough, Steve Culliford, Adrian Duffield, Matthew Gaskin, Liz Hayden, 
Simon Hewings, Suzanne Malcolm, Adrianna Partridge, Margaret Reed, Mark Stone 
and Christopher Wheeler

Apologies:

Councillor David Nimmo-Smith tendered apologies. 

Also present: 

Richard Spraggett (Capita Accountancy) 

62 Apologies for absence 

Councillor David Nimmo-Smith had submitted an apology for absence.  

63 Minutes 

RESOLVED: to approve the minutes of the Cabinet meeting held on 7 December 
2017 as a correct record and agree that the Chairman signs them as such.  

64 Declaration of disclosable pecuniary interest 

None

65 Urgent business and chairman's announcements 

None

Page 3

Agenda Item 2



2

66 Public participation 

None

67 Didcot Garden Town, heat mapping and energy master-
planning 

Cabinet considered the head of corporate services’ report on the results of the Didcot 
Garden Town heat mapping and master-planning project.  This sought approval to 
spend £90,000, jointly with Vale of White Horse District Council, on a feasibility study 
for a district heat network of pipes in north Didcot to use waste heat from Didcot 
Power Station.  Cabinet noted that £60,000 of the cost would be sought from the 
government; the remaining £30,000 was being sought from existing resources in the 
Didcot Garden Town and Energy budgets, split 50:50 with the Vale.  

Cabinet considered three options: 
1. Present the feasibility study findings to key stakeholders and rely on other 

parties to initiate and develop the heat network, with the council promoting and 
offering advice 

2. Present the study findings to key stakeholders and the council takes the lead, 
in partnership with others, in pursuing more detailed feasibility work on the 
technical and commercial viability of the project 

3. To not participate in the development of a heat network 

The report recommended that the council led the work on a heat network for north 
Didcot (option 2) but relied on other parties to lead on similar projects at Harwell 
Campus and Culham Science Centre (option 1).  The projects could reduce 
emissions of greenhouse gases and other pollutants, improve air quality, and 
improve the affordability of fuel supply, thereby reducing fuel poverty.  It could also 
contribute to the council’s aspirations for regeneration, inward investment, local jobs 
and growth.  

Cabinet agreed to the report recommendations with the council taking the lead on 
carrying out more detailed feasibility work on the technical and commercial viability of 
a heat network for north Didcot.  

RESOLVED: to 

(a) approve an application to Government for £60,000 match funding for a detailed 
feasibility study into the technical and commercial viability of a north Didcot 
district heat network using waste heat from Didcot Power Station;  

(b) approve the allocation of £15,000 from existing resources in the Didcot Garden 
Town and Energy budgets, to fund this council’s share of this work; and 

(c) subject to the above government grant funding being approved and received, to 
agree that the Cabinet member for development and regeneration can approve 
the implementation of the proposed project and authorise the head of 
development and regeneration to finalise terms of, and enter into, a drawdown 
contract for the appointment of AECOM to deliver the feasibility study under the 
Places for People Placemaking Hub framework approved at the Cabinet 
meeting on 5 October 2017, as permitted under the framework.  

Page 4

Agenda Item 2



3

68 Housing and growth deal for Oxfordshire 

Cabinet considered the report of the head of partnership and insight.  This 
recommended that the council signed up to the Housing and Growth Deal for 
Oxfordshire and approved the submission of a delivery plan to the Ministry of 
Housing, Communities and Local Government.  

The growth deal offered by the ministry was to all six principal councils in 
Oxfordshire, requiring them to work together to plan for and support the delivery of up 
to 100,000 new homes up to 2031.  These homes would be planned for through a 
joint statutory spatial plan and spread across the county.  In return, the government 
would provide £150 million infrastructure funding across a five-year period, £60 
million for affordable housing, and a further £5 million capacity funding.  The ministry 
had also offered planning freedoms and flexibilities for a limited period.  These 
included a reduced housing land supply requirement of three years rather than five 
years, and a housing delivery test based on objectively-assessed housing need 
figures rather than the strategic market housing assessment figures.  

Cabinet considered the council’s options:
1. agree the deal as offered 
2. agree the deal subject to conditions 
3. reject the deal 

The leader reported that following negotiations with the ministry and the other 
Oxfordshire councils, the deal as offered would bring benefits for South Oxfordshire 
and he believed the council could sign the deal.  Cabinet concurred, believing that 
the infrastructure funding and the planning flexibilities were welcomed, although it 
was recognised that further work was required on the detail.  The scope of the joint 
statutory spatial plan was a matter for the councils to determine.  Cabinet considered 
that the joint statutory spatial plan should not allocate housing sites, this was a matter 
for each district council’s local plan.  Cabinet believed that the apportionment of 
affordable housing funds between the other Oxfordshire councils would need to be 
on a fair and equitable basis, and the assessment of the council’s housing delivery 
performance should be against planning permissions, not homes built.  

RECOMMENDED to Council to: 

(a) agree to the Oxfordshire Housing and Growth Deal (the Deal) (attached as 
Appendix 1 to the report of the Head of Partnership and Insight to Cabinet on 12 
February 2018); 

(b) agree the Delivery Plan (attached as Appendix 2 to the report of the Head of 
Partnership and Insight to Cabinet on 12 February 2018) as the basis for the 
Deal; noting that elements will be updated as detailed work programmes 
develop; 

(c) delegate authority to the Chief Executive, in consultation with the Leader and 
the Growth Board, to make minor changes to the Delivery Plan that may be 
required to secure agreement with Government; 

(d) delegate authority to the Chief Executive, in consultation with Leader and the 
Growth Board, to agree the Year 1 affordable housing delivery programme, 
phasing and processes specified in the Delivery Plan; 

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



4

(e) appoint Oxfordshire County Council as the accountable body in respect of the 
Oxfordshire Housing and Growth Deal; 

(f) delegate authority to the Chief Executive, in consultation with the Leader and 
the Growth Board, to review the terms of reference of the Growth Board and 
agree any amendments and any appropriate inter-authority agreements 
required to support the Delivery of the Housing and Growth Deal; 

(g) delegate authority to the Chief Executive, in consultation with the Leader to take 
any other decisions arising from agreement to the Oxfordshire Housing and 
Growth Deal, until the revised terms of reference of the Growth Board are in 
place; and 

(h) agree to participate in the preparation of a Joint Statutory Spatial Plan (JSSP) 
for Oxfordshire in accordance with the timescales set out in the Delivery Plan 
and in accordance with Section 28 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase 
Act 2004, the milestones for progressing the JSSP being contingent on 
Government delivering the Planning Freedoms and Flexibilities as described in 
the Delivery Plan.  

69 Treasury management mid-year monitoring 2017/18 

Cabinet considered the head of finance’s mid-year monitoring report on the council’s 
treasury management function.  This covered the period from 1 April to 30 
September 2017.  

Cabinet noted that the investment income received was above the budget target.  
The Joint Audit and Governance Committee had also considered the report and was 
satisfied that the treasury management activities had been carried out in accordance 
with the treasury management strategy and policy.  Cabinet concurred.  

RECOMMENDED: to Council to approve the head of finance’s 2017/18 treasury 
management mid-year monitoring report to Cabinet on 12 February 2018.  

70 Treasury management and investment strategy 2018/19 

Cabinet considered the report of the head of finance and an addendum, which 
recommended adoption of the treasury management and investment strategy 
2018/19.  The council was required to adopt a strategy each year, setting out how the 
treasury service would operate and how it would support the council’s capital 
investment decisions.  It also set limitations on treasury management activity 
governed by the prudential indicators.  The report and the addendum set out the 
proposed changes to the strategy.  

The Joint Audit and Governance Committee had considered the report and 
recommended that the head of finance should consult the co-chair of Joint Audit and 
Governance Committee before investing in any Non-UCITS Retail Scheme.  Cabinet 
supported the proposed strategy and the amendments as well as the 
recommendation of the Joint Audit and Governance Committee.  

Page 6

Agenda Item 2



5

RECOMMENDED: to Council to 

(a) approve the treasury management strategy 2018/19 set out in appendix A to the 
head of finance’s report to Cabinet on 12 February 2018 and the addendum to 
the report; 

(b) approve the prudential indicators and treasury limits for the period 2018/19 to 
2020/21 as set out in table 2, appendix A to the head of finance’s report to 
Cabinet on 12 February 2018; and 

(c) approve the annual investment strategy set out in appendix A (paragraphs 18 to 
58), subject to the head of finance consulting the co-chair of Joint Audit and 
Governance Committee before investing in any Non-UCITS Retail Scheme, and 
the lending criteria detailed in table 5 to the head of finance’s report to Cabinet 
on 12 February 2018.  

71 Medium term financial strategy 2018/19 to 2022/23 

Cabinet considered the head of finance’s report, which proposed the medium term 
financial strategy for the period 2018/19 to 2022/23 and asked Cabinet to 
recommend its adoption to Council.  The strategy set out the financial objectives of 
the council and the principles to be followed in managing the council’s finances to 
achieve its objectives.  It helped inform the treasury management strategy that 
governed how the council could invest its balances.  In addition to objectives and 
principles, a narrative on significant current issues was included in each section.  The 
significant current issues had been updated.  No changes to the principles or 
objectives of the strategy were proposed, however, Cabinet noted that a thorough 
review of its strategy would be required shortly to ensure effective long-term 
management of the council’s finances.  

Cabinet supported the strategy.  

RECOMMENDED: to Council to approve the Medium Term Financial Strategy for 
2018/19 to 2022/23 as attached to the head of finance’s report to Cabinet on 12 
February 2018.  

72 Revenue budget 2018/19 and capital programme to 2022/23 

Cabinet considered the head of finance’s report.  This brought together all relevant 
information to allow Cabinet to recommend to Council a revenue budget for 2018/19 
and a capital programme for 2018/19 to 2022/23.  The Medium Term Financial Plan 
was included, which provided details of the forward budget model for the next five 
years.  The report also recommended the prudential indicators to be set by the 
Council in accordance with ‘the Prudential Code’, introduced as part of the Local 
Government Act 2003.  

The Scrutiny Committee had reviewed the budget report and had supported it.  
Cabinet considered that the budget showed prudence and careful financial planning, 
while keeping council tax low.  

Page 7

Agenda Item 2



6

RECOMMENDED: to Council to 

(a) set the revenue budget for 2018/19 as set out in appendix A.1 to the head of 
finance’s report to Cabinet on 12 February 2018; 

(b) approve the capital programme for 2018/19 to 2022/23 as set out in appendix 
D.1 to the head of finance’s report, together with the capital growth bids set out 
in appendix D.2 of the report; 

(c) set the council’s prudential limits as listed in appendix E to the head of finance’s 
report, 

(d) approve the medium term financial plan to 2022/23 as set out in appendix F.1 to 
the head of finance’s report; 

(e) allocate £1,000,000 to fund the Communities Capital and Revenue Grant 
Scheme; 

RESOLVED: to 

(f) maintain car park fees and charges at current levels; and

(g) agree that the Cabinet member for finance may make minor adjustments to this 
report and the prudential indicators, in conjunction with the head of finance, 
should they prove necessary following the publication of the final local 
government settlement and prior to its submission to Council on 15 February 
2018.  

The meeting closed at 10.05 am

Chairman Date

Page 8

Agenda Item 2



Cabinet Report

Report of Head of Housing and Environment
Author: Shona Ware (Legal and Community Safety Service Manager) and 
Karen Brown (Community Safety Team Leader)
Telephone: Shona Ware - 01235 422188 / Karen Brown 01235 422592
E-mail: Shona.Ware@southandvale.gov.uk or 
Karen.Brown@southandvale.gov.uk 
Wards affected: Thame 
Cabinet member responsible: Cllr Elizabeth Gillespie
Tel: 01865 341398

E-mail: Elizabeth.Gillespie@southoxon.gov.uk

To: CABINET
Date: Thursday 5 April 2018

Thame Public Spaces Protection Order 

Recommendations

That Cabinet:

(a) approves the proposed Public Spaces Protection Order for Thame as set out in 
Appendix A for it to take effect from 1 May 2018 and

(b) instructs the Head of Housing and Environment to publish the order on the council’s 
website and ensure the necessary signage is installed in the town to publicise the order.

Purpose of Report

1. To ask Cabinet to approve a Public Spaces Protection Order (PSPO) for the area of 
Thame as set out in Appendix A to this report. If approved, the order would come into 
effect on 1 May 2018. 

Corporate Objectives 

2. The creation of this order will contribute to the council’s corporate priority ‘building the 
local economy’ by helping to:

 maintain low levels of crime and anti-social behaviour

 make Thame a place where people who live, work or visit the town feel safe. 

CONFIDENTIAL

Page 9

Agenda Item 6

mailto:Shona.Ware@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:Karen.Brown@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:Elizabeth.Gillespie@southoxon.gov.uk


3. In addition, the proposed PSPO will help the South and Vale Community Safety 
Partnership deliver against its objective to manage demand on services through 
working together.

Background

4. Thame is currently covered by a Designated Public Places Order (DPPO) which was 
put in place by the district council in 2009 to tackle anti-social behaviour relating to 
alcohol consumption in the town. Under the order, a police officer has the power to ask 
somebody to stop drinking alcohol or confiscate their alcohol if they are behaving (or 
are likely to behave) anti socially. If the person refuses to hand over the alcohol the 
Police officer can issue them with a fixed penalty notice (FPN).

5. Since October 2017, DPPOs have been converted to Public Spaces Protection Orders 
(PSPOs). This is a legal requirement as set out in the Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and 
Policing Act 2014 and it is the responsibility of the district council to manage the 
process locally.

6. The new PSPO is similar to a DPPO but, in addition to alcohol related anti-social 
behaviour, it can include a wider range of offences to help address other local anti-
social behaviour issues that are persistent and having a significant, detrimental impact 
on the community.

Purpose of the PSPO for Thame

7. The aim of the PSPO is to tackle alcohol related anti-social behaviour and stop groups 
of people causing alarm, distress, harassment or a nuisance in a public place to 
improve the quality of life of local residents and support a vibrant, safe town where 
people enjoy living, working and visiting. 

8. The proposed order covers most of Thame, as outlined by the red lines on the map 
attached to the order (Appendix A) and would apply to people aged 16 and over.

9. The specific requirements in the proposed order give the police the power (in public 
places within the area covered by the order) to:

 Ask somebody to stop drinking alcohol and/or confiscate alcohol. If the person 
refuses to comply, the police officer can issue a fixed penalty notice (FPN).

 Issue somebody with an FPN if they are causing alarm, distress, harassment 
or a nuisance in a public place.

10.The proposed order is designed to tackle these problems that occur in numerous 
locations across Thame, should this problem cause displacement to other areas the 
PSPO will be reviewed. The police would be able to enforce the order at any time of 
the day or week to provide as much flexibility to address the issues as possible.

11.The Local Police Area (LPA) Commander for South Oxfordshire (Superintendent Rory 
Freeman) supports this proposed order. If approved, the police would enforce the order 
in a proportionate way and manage it within the resources available so as not to affect 
their response to genuine emergency situations. 

Page 10

Agenda Item 6



How we drafted the order

12.The council’s community safety team worked in partnership with a range of key 
stakeholders to consider if a) the alcohol related restriction from the DPPO was still 
required in Thame and b) if any additional requirements were needed to address other 
relevant ASB issues in the town. Stakeholders included the police, Thame Town 
Council and other council services such as Environmental Protection.

13. In summary, the stakeholder engagement confirmed that the existing requirement in 
the DPPO relating to alcohol and anti-social behaviour should be included in the 
PSPO. The other significant ASB issue that stakeholders were concerned about related 
to groups of people causing alarm, distress, harassment or a nuisance in a public place 
and causing some residents to feel intimidated. 

14.We asked relevant partner agencies/council teams to provide us with evidence to 
support their request for groups of people causing anti-social behaviour to be added to 
the PSPO and their views on the age of residents the proposed PSPO should cover. 
Although the volume of reports to the police and other agencies about the issue is low, 
it is an issue impacting on residents that has proven very difficult to resolve due to its 
nature/the powers currently available to tackle it effectively.

15.Based on the feedback and evidence gathered from stakeholders and given the lack of 
suitable existing enforcement tools, we consider a PSPO to be the most effective way 
of tackling the following two issues in Thame: 

 Alcohol related anti-social behaviour in a public place
 Anti-social behaviour causing alarm, distress, harassment or a nuisance in a public 

space.   

16. In relation to the alcohol requirement, the order does not cover licensed premises and 
is not a total ban on drinking alcohol in Thame. It just makes it an offence if somebody 
doesn’t comply with a police officer’s request to stop drinking alcohol or hand over 
alcohol in the area covered by the PSPO. It is not intended to stop anyone from 
drinking sensibly. For example, if someone is drinking alcohol with a picnic by the 
riverside and not acting in an anti-social way, they would not be affected. People 
drinking alcohol responsibly outside licensed premises would also similarly not be 
affected.

17.We have worked with the council’s Equalities Officer to carry out an Equality Impact 
Assessment on the proposed order to ensure we have considered the impact on 
different groups within the community and it didn’t highlight any concerns or 
recommend any further action. 

18. In proposing the order, we have given due regard to Article 10 (freedom of expression) 
and 11 (freedom of assembly and association) of the Humans Rights Act 1998 and 
framed the order to respect these rights.

Consultation on the draft PSPO

19.Although the statutory guidance relating to PSPOs states we only need to consult the 
Police and Crime Commissioner, the chief officer of police, relevant land owners 
(including the Highway Authority) and any community representatives we think 

Page 11

Agenda Item 6



appropriate on the draft Order, we considered it best practice to give the wider local 
community the opportunity to give feedback. 

20.We ran a four-week public consultation on the draft Order in October 2017, which we 
published on the council’s website along with an explanation of what a PSPO is and 
our plans for Thame. We also included a set of Frequently Asked Questions and a 
survey to enable people to give their feedback on the draft order. 

21.We contacted the following key stakeholders directly to alert them to the consultation:

Thames Valley Police and Crime Commissioner

TVP Chief Constable and LPA Commander

South Portfolio Holder for Community Safety 

Thame district councillors

Chair of South Scrutiny Committee

Thame Town Council (clerk)

All members of the South and Vale Community Safety Partnership.

22.We promoted the consultation through the press, which received positive coverage, a 
premium advert on Facebook, in In Focus and locally via the Thames Valley Police 
Alert service and at Lord William’s School.  

23.  We received 241 responses to the consultation. Of these, 218 were from residents in 
Thame, eight from community/voluntary groups, three from local businesses and two 
from visitors to the area.  Ten respondents did not disclose the capacity in which they 
were responding.   The detailed results of the consultation are attached in Appendix B. 
In summary, the overall response to the consultation was very positive and 
demonstrated strong support for the proposed order from the local community: 

 87 per cent of respondents agreed/strongly agreed with the alcohol element of the 
order (six per cent said they disagreed/strongly disagreed)

 92 per cent agreed/strongly agreed with stopping groups of people causing alarm, 
distress, harassment or a nuisance (six per cent said they disagreed/strongly 
disagreed)

24.Some respondents used this consultation as an opportunity to report their concerns 
regarding other community safety issues (e.g. drug use in the town centre).  We 
passed this information onto the Neighbourhood Police Team who have existing 
powers to deal with this behaviour.  

25.A small number of respondents (11) raised concerns about vehicle offences (e.g. to 
monitor speeding motorists and young people congregating round cars and playing 
loud music from cars).  Having consulted with the neighbourhood team we have 
passed these reports to them for their intelligence.  Should the situation change, and 
we receive further evidence of the problem we can amend the order. 

Page 12

Agenda Item 6



26.Ten respondents asked for the PSPO area to be expanded (e.g. to cover the Southern 
road recreation ground, the skate park, Elms park, Lee Park Estate). The areas 
included in the PSPO are set out in Appendix A and include the town centre, the 
southern road recreational ground, the skate park and Elms park.  We selected these 
areas as they have been the source of most reported anti-social behaviour.  If any 
evidence comes to light of group anti-social behaviour in the Lee Park Estate and other 
areas, we can review the PSPO and amend the area it covers.  

27.We also asked participants for their views on the age restriction for the PSPO and gave 
three options: ‘16+, 18+’ or other’.  Over half the respondents were in favour of the 
lower age limit.  As the punishment for breaching a condition outlined in the PSPO is a 
Fixed Penalty Notice of £100, the district council and the police have decided not to 
issue any Fixed Penalty Notices to people under 16 as these individuals cannot be 
expected to have a source of income with which to pay any fines.  The district council 
would not seek to recover any costs or initiate court proceedings for people under 16.  
Furthermore, the district council does not want to see under 16s disproportionately 
penalised within the criminal justice system for failing to pay their fine.  The 
neighbourhood police team will be provided with guide lines on the enforcement of the 
PSPO and will continue to work with agencies and parents to address this type of 
behaviour.  With regard to drinking alcohol in public, the PSPO does not specifically 
target people of any particular age however, it should be noted that the police already 
have powers to confiscate alcohol from people under 18 who are consuming alcohol in 
a public space.  The Community Safety Team will monitor the number of Fixed Penalty 
Notices issued at the monthly Joint Tasking Meetings.  

28.Taking into consideration all the consultation feedback, we have not made any 
changes to the draft order. 

Options

29.Option 1 – Cabinet approves the proposed Public Spaces Protection Order for Thame 
(Appendix A) 

30.Option 2 – Cabinet requests changes to the proposed PSPO and we carry out a further 
round of public consultation on those changes before bringing the order back to 
Cabinet for considering at a later date.

31.Option 3 – Cabinet rejects the proposed PSPO and the existing DPPO automatically 
converts to a PSPO (alcohol requirement only) for three years.

32.Option 4 – Cabinet rejects the proposed PSPO and when the existing DPPO converts 
to a PSPO (alcohol requirement only) asks for the PSPO to be discharged immediately.

Financial Implications

33.The only financial cost to the council for introducing this order would be for signage in 
the town to publicise the order. We anticipate needing approximately 40 metal 
signs/stickers at relevant locations within the town, which would cost between £500 
and £1,000 to purchase and a similar amount to install. The South and Vale 
Community Safety Partnership (CSP) has agreed to fund the signs and we have 
sufficient in existing budgets to pay for their installation.

Page 13

Agenda Item 6



Legal Implications

34.Section 59 of the Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014 gives local 
authorities the powers to create PSPOs to tackle Anti-Social Behaviour in public 
spaces.  

Risks

35.Once a PSPO has been made, any person who lives in the area covered by the order 
(or who regularly works in or visits that area) may apply to the High Court to question 
the validity of the order on the grounds that the local authority did not have the power to 
make the order, or to include/impose particular prohibitions or requirements in the 
order, or that it did not comply with a requirement of the Act in making the order. The 
High Court must receive an application within six weeks of the order being made.

36.Without a PSPO in place, there is a risk that alcohol related ASB and vehicle related 
noise nuisance will continue and potentially escalate as the police will be unable to 
effectively address the issues. This would have a detrimental impact on the local 
community.

37.Given the positive feedback we received from both stakeholders and the public about 
the proposed order, there is a risk to the reputation of the council if we don’t progress 
the order as we may be seen to be disengaged from the needs of the community and 
not proactively delivering against our commitment to maintain low levels of crime and 
anti-social behaviour.

Other implications

38.We have not identified any implications in addition to those we have already highlighted 
in the body of this report.

Conclusion

39. In summary, the proposed Public Spaces Protection Order for Thame will help:

a. support the police in continuing to tackle alcohol related ASB in public places 
around the town

b. provide the police with an effective tool to tackle groups of people causing 
alarm, distress, harassment or a nuisance

c. demonstrate that anti-social drinking and anti-social behaviour is not acceptable 
and will not be tolerated in Thame’s public places

d. residents, businesses and visitors to feel safe in the town

e. protect the economic viability of the town.

Background Papers

 Appendix A – Proposed Public Spaces Protection Order for Thame
 Appendix B – Public consultation summary 

Page 14

Agenda Item 6



Appendix A

ANTI SOCIAL BEHAVIOUR CRIME AND POLICING ACT 2014

PART 4, SECTION 59

PUBLIC SPACES PROTECTION ORDER No. 1 of 201#

South Oxfordshire District Council (the Council) in exercise of the power under section 
59 of The Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014 (the Act), being satisfied 
that the conditions set out in section 59 of the Act have been met, makes the following 
order:

The Order applies to the public place being that part of Thame shown edged red on the 
map contained in the schedule of this Order (“the restricted area”):

1. No person shall refuse to stop drinking alcohol or to surrender any container (sealed 
or unsealed) which is believed to contain alcohol, when required to do so by an 
authorised person.  

The provisions of Section 63 of the Act – (Consumption of alcohol in breach of 
prohibition in order) applies to this part (Article 1) of this order, as follows.

(1) This section applies where a constable or an authorised person reasonably believes 
that a person (P)—

(a) is or has been consuming alcohol in breach of a prohibition in a public spaces 
protection order, or

(b) intends to consume alcohol in circumstances in which doing so would be a breach of 
such a prohibition.

In this section “authorised person” means a person authorised for the purposes of this 
section by the local authority that made the public spaces protection order (or authorised 
by virtue of section 69 of the Act). 

(2) The constable or authorised person may require P—

(a) not to consume, in breach of the order, alcohol or anything which the constable or 
authorised person reasonably believes to be alcohol;

(b) to surrender anything in P’s possession which is, or which the constable or 
authorised person reasonably believes to be, alcohol or a container for alcohol.

Legal and Democratic services
HEAD OF SERVICE: Margaret Reed

Page 15

Agenda Item 6



Appendix A

(3) A constable or an authorised person who imposes a requirement under subsection 
(2) must tell P that failing without reasonable excuse to comply with the requirement is 
an offence.

(4) A requirement imposed by an authorised person under subsection (2) is not valid if 
the person—

(a) is asked by P to show evidence of his or her authorisation, and

(b) fails to do so.

(5) A constable or an authorised person may dispose of anything surrendered under 
subsection (2) (b) in whatever way he or she thinks appropriate.

(6) A person who fails without reasonable excuse to comply with a requirement imposed 
on him or her under subsection (2) commits an offence and is liable on summary 
conviction to a fine not exceeding level 2 on the standard scale.

2. A person is prohibited from congregating in a group of three or more people within the 
restricted area after a constable or authorised person has requested that the group 
disperse.

A constable or authorised person may request that a group within the restricted area 
disperse where they reasonably suspect any person in that group to be causing or likely 
to cause nuisance, alarm, harassment or distress to any other person.

In this Article 2 “authorised person” means a person authorised for the purposes of this 
Article by the local authority that made the public spaces protection order (or authorised 
by virtue of section 69 of the Act). 

The provisions of Section 67 of the Act (Offence of failing to comply with
order) applies to this part (Article 2) of this order, as follows:

(1) It is an offence for a person without reasonable excuse—

(a) to do anything that the person is prohibited from doing by a public spaces
protection order, or

(b) to fail to comply with a requirement to which the person is subject under a
public spaces protection order.

(2) A person guilty of an offence under this section is liable on summary
conviction to a fine not exceeding level 3 on the standard scale.

This Order shall come into force on ##  201# and remain in place for a period of three 
years.

Page 16

Agenda Item 6

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2014/12/section/63/enacted#section-63-2
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2014/12/section/63/enacted#section-63-2
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2014/12/section/63/enacted#section-63-2-b
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2014/12/section/63/enacted#section-63-2


Appendix A

SCHEDULE

South Oxfordshire District Council

ANTI SOCIAL BEHAVIOUR CRIME AND POLICING ACT 2014

PART 4, SECTION 59

PUBLIC SPACES PROTECTION ORDER No. 1 of 201# (Thame)

Dated this             day of                  201#.

THE COMMON SEAL OF SOUTH 
OXFORDSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

was hereunto affixed in the presence of:

Designated Person

Page 17

Agenda Item 6



Consultation Summary – Proposal to create a Public Spaces Protection Order (PSPO) in Thame – February 2018  

 
 

Proposal to create a Public Spaces 
Protection Order (PSPO) in Thame 
CONSULTATION SUMMARY 

Summary of a consultation which asked for views on a proposed Public 
Spaces Protection Order in Thame 

FEBRUARY 2018  

SUMMARY 
This report summarises responses to a consultation undertaken by South Oxfordshire 
District Council which asked for views on a proposed Public Spaces Protection Order 
(PSPO) for Thame. PSPOs allow the police to tackle anti-social behaviour that occurs in 
public areas.  

A short online survey was set up allowing people to comment on the proposed order 
between 30 October and 20 November. The public consultation was made available on 
the council’s website and publicised in a number of ways for the attention of local 
residents.  

We received 241 responses to the consultation from residents and people with a 
connection to the town.  

Key findings: 

• The large majority of respondents agreed with the proposed order. 87 per cent 
of respondents felt that giving the police powers to stop people from drinking in 
public spaces was a good idea, whilst 92 per cent were in favour of giving the 
police powers to deal with group related anti-social behaviour.  

• 92 per cent of respondents were in favour of the PSPO age limit being set at the 
lower age band of 16+ for the restriction aimed at stopping groups from 
congregating and causing a nuisance.  

Council officers have reviewed feedback from the consultation and made responses 
throughout this report.  

Page 18

Agenda Item 6



Consultation Summary – Proposal to create a Public Spaces Protection Order (PSPO) in Thame – February 2018  

Based on the feedback received, the council believes there is a strong case to make a 
PSPO for Thame as proposed.  A decision to adopt the order will be made by councillors 
by February 2018. 

BACKGROUND TO THE CONSULTATION 
South Oxfordshire District Council undertook this consultation to see if there is public support 
for the creation of a Public Spaces Protection Order (PSPO) for Thame. 
 
PSPOs allow the police to address specific anti-social behaviour offences that occur in public 
areas. Orders can be tailored to the needs of a local area. 
 
Thame has had a Designated Public Places Order (DPPO) since 2009 which has given police 
the power to stop those likely of causing anti-social behaviour from consuming alcohol in public 
areas and confiscating it if they refuse. However, the Anti-Social Behaviour Crime and Policing 
Act 2014 requires that existing DPPOs are replaced with PSPOs. 
 
In view of this legislative requirement, as well as conversations with Thames Valley Police 
officers and other stakeholders, the council felt that it would be appropriate to propose a PSPO 
for Thame.  
 
The order proposed for Thame states it would restrict the consumption of alcohol in public 
places, as well as stopping group related anti-social behaviour. If created, it would give police 
officers the power to issue fixed penalty notices of £100 to people who fail to adhere to the 
conditions of the Order.  
 

CONSULTATION METHODOLOGY 
The proposal to create a Public Spaces Protection Order (PSPO) for Thame was published on 
the council’s website on 30 October 2017. This included a summary of the proposed order 
(Appendix A).  

Local residents were encouraged to comment on the proposed order by completing a short 
online survey. Paper response forms were also provided on request. Appendix B shows the 
consultation wording.  

The consultation ran for a period of four weeks and closed on 20 November 2017.  

To make sure local residents were aware of the proposal, we publicised the consultation using 
a press release and the council’s Facebook page and twitter accounts. We also sent out a 
Thames Valley Police alert and sent out a presentation to Lord William’s school (Appendix D).  

To make sense of the feedback received, we employed two types of analysis. In the first 
instance, we looked at the headline quantitative measures of agreement with the proposed 
order. This was followed by coding of the free text comments to help understand the sentiment 
behind respondent’ agreement or disagreement with the order. The codes we generated 
identified frequently mentioned comments and concerns. The findings of the consultation are 
set out in the next section of this report.  

Page 19

Agenda Item 6



Consultation Summary – Proposal to create a Public Spaces Protection Order (PSPO) in Thame – February 2018  

The consultation was conducted in full compliance with the council’s Public Engagement 
Charter1. 

CONSULTATION RESPONSES  
241 responded to the consultation. Of these, 218 respondents were people who live in the 
Thame, eight respondents were people from a community or voluntary group, three 
respondents were people from local businesses and two respondents were people who 
regularly visited the area. Ten people did not disclose the capacity in which they were 
responding. 

Several duplicate responses were removed and do not feature in the results presented below.  

Agreement with the order 

Participants were asked how far they agreed or disagreed with the proposed scope of the 
PSPO for Thame. 

Figure one shows that more than nine out of ten respondents agreed with the proposal to stop 
groups of people causing alarm, distress, harassment or a nuisance in a public place.  In 
contrast, only 15 (six per cent) respondents disagreed.  

Similarly, Figure one shows that a similar number of people agreed with the alcohol element of 
the order, however there were fewer people who said they ‘strongly agree’ by comparison. 
Only 13 (six per cent) disagreed.  

Figure one: respondents’ agreement with the proposed orders. 

159

189

42

23

17

4

8

8

5

7

0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%

Requesting people stop drinking alcohol in public
spaces and confiscating if they refuse

Stopping groups of people causing alarm, distress
harassment, or a nuisance in a public place

AGREEMENT WITH SCOPE OF PSPO

Strongly agree Agree Neither agree nor disagree Disagree Strongly agree

Respondents were also asked if they had any further comments or suggestions to make on the 
order. 107 responses were received; Table one shows the frequency of the different types of 
comments made. 

The majority of comments received were statements in support of the proposed order. Other 
comments included suggestions for other types of anti-social behaviour which could be 

1 http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/about-us/have-your-say/our-commitments-public-engagement  
Page 20

Agenda Item 6

http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/about-us/have-your-say/our-commitments-public-engagement


Consultation Summary – Proposal to create a Public Spaces Protection Order (PSPO) in Thame – February 2018  

addressed by the order or questions about how the order would be policed. These comments 
are described in more detail below.  

 

Table one: frequency of comments 
Comment type Frequency 
Supportive statement/no further suggestion 25 
Enforcement concerns 21 
Suggestion for an alternative approach 15 
Against PSPO 15 
Reporting drink/drug use 12 
Reporting vehicle offence 11 
Area of the PSPO 10 
Reporting other problem 7 
More lighting needed 5 
Concerns for displacement of ASB 5 
Increased CCTV is necessary 4 
Raise awareness of the order 4 
Definition of ASB too subjective 3 
Specific point of contact needed 3 
Time span of PSPO 1 
Minimum age query 1 

 

SUPPORTIVE STATEMENT/NO FURTHER SUGGESTION 

Nearly one in four respondents who made comments said they supported the proposed order.   

Excellent proposal - (ID: 66525427) 

I think it’s a great idea and much needed - (ID: 66546714) 

It seems the groups of teenagers hanging around can often be abusive to 
passers-by. The trouble seems to happen in larger groups. This can only be a 
good idea for our area- (ID: 666950254) 

ENFORCEMENT CONCERNS  

Almost one in five respondents raised concerns over how this PSPO would work in practice – 
with many referring to a lack of police.  

How feasible is that we have enough police available to police this or will it 
depend on the general public reporting incidents? - (ID: 66670079) 

There should be a system that members of the public can report online people 
who are causing problems and be able to submit private CCTV or evidence to 
support complaints/ This could then mean SODC [South Oxfordshire District 
Council] could also issue fines retrospectively with the information provided. 
Insufficient police due to cuts to manage this alone. (ID: 67017758) 

Page 21

Agenda Item 6



Consultation Summary – Proposal to create a Public Spaces Protection Order (PSPO) in Thame – February 2018  

Other responses coded under this category contained concerns of how and who could enforce 
the PSPO. 

I would hope that the powers would be exercised with common sense and 
discretion - (ID: 66528952) 

Will the PCSOs have powers to implement this? Surely this will only be 
successful if there are enough officers to police public areas. - (ID: 66526854) 

We will produce a briefing note to the police to provide guidance on the enforcement of the 
order and to outline the underlying principles behind it. The briefing note will emphasise that 
discretion should be used when deciding on when a FPN should be issued.  

PCSOs will be given the authority to issue FPNs.  

Our legal team will offer a further safe guard for FPNs that are not paid – discretion will be 
used to decide whether prosecution is appropriate in the individual’s circumstances.  

We will also monitor the use and effectiveness of the order and raise our concerns if we feel 
it is being misused.  

South Oxfordshire District Council do have an online reporting service for Anti-Social 
Behaviour incidents: http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/services-and-advice/community-
adviceand-support/safer-communities/antisocial-behaviour/report-antis. However, we would 
encourage people to report any crimes directly to the police via the non-emergency number 
101 or 999 if it is an emergency. The neighbourhood police team can also be contacted via 
email: ThameWatlingtonChinnorNHPT@thamesvalley.pnn.police.uk  

 

SUGGESTION FOR AN ALTERNATIVE APPROACH 

15 respondents suggested measures in addition to the PSPO that may help reduce anti-social 
behaviour problems in Thame.  

Alternative methods should be sought for younger groups causing problems. - 
(ID: 66480571) 

The addition of lighting around the scout hut (rather than parents having to light 
the carpark with their cars after cubs to get our children home without hassle), 
CCTV and use of it and perhaps a specified email address or telephone number 
to report incidents might all be helpful. It is frustrating when so many local 
people know who the individuals are that are creating problems. It’s shutting the 
stable door stuff – it seems such a shame that these kids (& they are just kids) 
can’t somehow be engaged as individuals and provided with some support to 
achieve something more than getting in trouble and upsetting their community. - 
(ID: 66274419) 

A decent youth centre might help especially in the winter months - (ID: 
67274512) 

The District Council are exploring options with Thame Town Council who own the 
recreational grounds area to what measures could be introduced to make this area safer for 
the community.  

Page 22

Agenda Item 6

http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/services-and-advice/community-advice-and-support/safer-communities/antisocial-behaviour/report-antis
http://www.southoxon.gov.uk/services-and-advice/community-advice-and-support/safer-communities/antisocial-behaviour/report-antis


Consultation Summary – Proposal to create a Public Spaces Protection Order (PSPO) in Thame – February 2018  

The Community Safety Partnership has budget to support youth centres and other projects 
set up to provide support to youths. Bid applications can be requested from the Community 
Safety Partnership via Elizabeth Smith – Elizabeth.Smith@southandvale.gov.uk  

 
 
AGAINST PSPO 

A further 15 respondents indicated that they were against the PSPO coming into place at all  

Abandon the idea and make better use of existing powers. Whatever problems 
there are relate to lack of police, not lack of powers. - (ID: 66375308) 

Public spaces should be available for protests, celebrations (including alcohol) 
and gatherings for any age. Rather than asking the police to waste their time on 
trying to enforce petty and arbitrary rules the council should focus on dealing 
with relevant issues such as the chronic shortage of affordable housing and 
increased numbers of rough sleepers. - (ID: 66428829) 

This is a piece of legislation which is draconian and is being used to prevent 
people enjoying themselves. - (ID: 67252461) 

The alcohol requirement in this order is identical to (and merely replaces) the Designated 
Public Place Order which has been in Thame since 2009. Therefore, this is a requirement 
that has been in place for some time and not something new that is being introduced.  

The order is not being introduced to interfere with protests or to stop people from gathering – 
only to address those who are gathering with the intent to cause harassment, alarm, distress 
or nuisance to others which is preventing members of the community from feeling safe and 
able to enjoy themselves.  

 

REPORTING DRINK/DRUG USE 

A dozen people used the consultation as an opportunity to report anti-social behaviour 
problems they have experienced related to drink and drug use. 

A known group of youngsters are known to be supplying drugs etc. Sort them 
out and make sure the cattle market is clear in the evenings. - (ID: 66529275) 

I know living on a main road just off the high street comes with its occupation 
hazard of noise and disruption but frequently I am woken by groups of people 
who have clearly been drinking or are drinking. A few weeks ago, one of the 
groups decided to smash their bottles on the wall of our property and proceed to 
do it again as they walked through the Cattle Market car park. So as on 
individual this specific topic is important to me without the context and details 
behind the other drivers. I’m all for it.  (ID: 67039021) 

REPORTING VEHICLE OFFENCE 

A similar number also noted concerns about anti-social behaviour of some motorists.  

I think you are definitely on the right track. Would it be possible to monitor the 
speed of motorists who drive at far too high speeds in Nelson Street, Windmill 
Road and other roads in Thame - (ID: 66535942) 

Page 23

Agenda Item 6



Consultation Summary – Proposal to create a Public Spaces Protection Order (PSPO) in Thame – February 2018  

The most annoying ASB in Thame is youths congregating round cars and 
playing loud music from their cars. - (ID: 66677255) 

Drug related and vehicle related offences have not been considered for inclusion in the 
PSPO as they are already covered under existing legislation.  

Reports of drug and vehicle related offences have been passed onto the neighbourhood 
policing team for their intelligence.  

 

AREA OF THE PSPO 

10 people made comments on the area of the proposed order with a view that this should 
encompass areas experiencing problems with anti-social behaviour.  

This shouldn’t just be in the immediate town centre. Everywhere within the ring 
road should be included as there’s annoying groups in the Lee park estate also 
and getting drunk in children’s play parks out of the town. - (ID: 66565553) 

Should incorporate the south road recreation ground, town centre, skate park, 
Queen Elizabeth Circle play area and Elms park. To have clear grounds on 
acceptable behaviour. - (ID: 66816869) 

The areas included in the PSPO can be found in Appendix C and include the town centre, 
the southern road recreational ground, the skate park and Elms park.  

These areas have all been selected as they have been the source of most reported ASB. 
Should there be evidence of group ASB occurring in other areas, the PSPO can be reviewed 
and the area covered amended.  

 

Views on the age of residents the proposed PSPO should apply to 

Participants were also asked what age restriction should be applied to the PSPO and given 
three options: ‘16+’, 18+’ or ‘Other’. Figure two shows that over half the respondents were in 
favour of the lower age limit.  

Figure two: age the PSPO should apply to. 

Page 24

Agenda Item 6



Consultation Summary – Proposal to create a Public Spaces Protection Order (PSPO) in Thame – February 2018  

 

16 years and 
above
58%

18 years and 
above

5%

Other 
37%

AGE PSPO SHOULD APPLY TO

 
When exploring the responses within the ‘Other’ category 79 of the 86 respondents who 
selected this category suggested an age limit lower than 16 years old. The remaining seven 
from this category either suggested a higher than 18 age limit, or suggested the PSPO should 
not come into place at all. Therefore, 92 per cent of respondents were in favour of a 16 or 
lower age limit to be enforced with this PSPO.   

Respondents were asked to explain why they supported the PSPO being implemented from 
that age group. Table two shows the frequency of the different types of comments made.

Table two: frequency of comments 
Comment type Frequency 
ASB is committed by younger individuals too 125 
Anyone responsible for ASB, regardless of age should be included in this legislation  29 
Group at the Scout Hut/Recreational Grounds. 13 
Anti PSPO 11 
Prevent behaviour from escalating 11 
Suggestion for parent involvement 4 
16 is old enough to be responsible for your actions 3 
Fine payment concern 3 
Police discretion 2 
Alternative approach for youths 2 
Age of criminal responsibility  1 

 

ASB IS COMMITTED BY YOUNGER INDIVIDUALS TOO 

The majority of responses raised the concern that if the PSPO age limit was set at 18, it would 
not be able to address the nature of anti-social behaviour that is experienced in Thame.   

A lot of anti social behaviour appears to be from individuals below the age of 18 
- (ID: 66238297) 

Page 25

Agenda Item 6



Consultation Summary – Proposal to create a Public Spaces Protection Order (PSPO) in Thame – February 2018  

Bad behaviour is not restricted to those over 18 not is access to alcohol and 
drugs - (ID: 66525797) 

I think most disturbances in the area are cause by young adults between 16 and 
18 so the order should be applicable to this age group to be most effective - (ID: 
66736183) 

Almost one in five respondents proposed an age limit younger than 16, arguing if the age limit 
were 16, the problem would not be addressed in full.   

Those younger than 16 drinking or causing a disturbance should be stopped 
too. (ID: 66296955) 

Groups of youths aged under 16 congregate in Thame town centre and do 
cause distress to other members of the community. - (ID: 66528511) 

As a teacher in the local area I am fully aware that people involved in such 
behaviour range from 12 upwards and if we put a limit/ - age cap on it then we 
will only be dealing with a part of the problem. - (ID: 66564192) 

ANYONE RESPONSIBLE FOR ASB, REGARDLESS OF AGE SHOULD BE INCLUDED 
WITHIN THIS LEGISLATION. 

15 per cent of respondents believed that the conditions of the PSPO should have no age 
restriction.   

We have seen individuals considerably under 16 years old behaving as 
described in this survey – no one should be above (or below age) in the law. 
(ID: 66524009) 

Anybody should be stopped making a nuisance no matter what age - (ID: 
66558015) 

GROUP AT THE SCOUT HUT/RECREATIONAL GROUNDS  

13 respondents directly referred to groups that cause trouble around the scout hut as 
justification for needing a lower age limit.  

Many of the youths that gather around the Scout Hut are young and so I think 
the PSPO should apply to people as young as possible. - (ID: 66548246) 

The groups, particularly the one at the Scout Hut in Thame, go as low as 14 
years of age. Therefore, anyone below should face consequences as well as 
the older ones. - (ID: 66329884) 

Page 26

Agenda Item 6



Consultation Summary – Proposal to create a Public Spaces Protection Order (PSPO) in Thame – February 2018  

As the punishment for breaching a condition outlined in the PSPO is a Fixed Penalty Notice 
of £100, the district council have taken the decision not to reduce the age any lower than 
16, as individuals younger than 16 cannot be expected to have a source of income with 
which to pay any fines. Furthermore, as a failure to pay fines will result in court proceedings, 
the district council do not want to see under 16s disproportionately penalised within the 
criminal justice system as a result of failure to pay.  

However, under 16s that are engaging in this type of behaviour will still be dealt with. The 
neighbourhood police team work alongside parents and schools to address this type of 
behaviour.   

The age restriction for the alcohol condition of the PSPO will remain at 18 years, as there is 
already existing legislation that allows Police/PCSOs to seize alcohol from under 18s: 
Confiscation of Alcohol (Young Persons) Act 1997.  

ANTI PSPO 

11 respondents indicated that they were not in support of the PSPO for any age group.  

There are very few activities & spaces for the young people of Thame to gather 
together. Community and being together is incredibly important for young 
people.  
Doing this just alienates them further. - (ID: 66757132) 

What evidence is there on the need to introduce the PSPO and is the proposal 
that it will cover the whole of Thame? 
I’ve not encountered these issues during 3 years of living in Thame so this 
seems disproportionate. - (ID: 67110905) 

It is expected that this legislation will improve the quality of life for all residents of Thame 
including young individuals who are also reporting to be negatively affected by group ASB 
see Appendix D. 

Key stakeholders including Thames Valley Police have provided evidence that group-related 
ASB is on ongoing issue that warrants further powers to address properly. Areas where this 
type of behaviour is most frequently reported have been included in the proposed PSPO.  

 
PREVENT BEHAVIOUR FROM ESCALATING 

11 respondents felt that a younger age limit was needed as it would prevent poor behaviour 
from escalating and give police the opportunity to address it in the early stages. 

I feel that an earlier age to nip issues such as these in the bud would be better. - 
(ID: 66545741) 

It’s not really adults it is kids from the local school who think they can get away 
with it. A bit of authority will demonstrate that they cannot just go around doing 
what they want.  
I believe that if they are allowed to go unpunished then they will continue as 
they grow up. - (ID: 67040284 

Page 27

Agenda Item 6



Consultation Summary – Proposal to create a Public Spaces Protection Order (PSPO) in Thame – February 2018  

HOW WE HAVE USED RESULTS OF THE CONSULTATION 
We would like to thank everyone that responded to this consultation.  

The feedback we received shows that there is support for the proposed order, albeit there are 
some concerns about whether it is needed and how it would be implemented. We have 
addressed these concerns in the report. 

Based on the evidence available to us, including the results of this consultation, the council 
believes there is a strong case to make a Public Spaces Protection Order for Thame with the 
restriction on group ASB being lowered to those aged 16 and above. As such we will be 
making a recommendation to council leaders to put this in place.  

A decision will be taken in February 2018 and the outcome will be published on the council’s 
website.  

FURTHER INFORMATION 
For information about the consultation or the results presented in this report, please contact: 

Phillip Vincent 

Public Engagement Lead Officer  

South Oxfordshire District Council 

01235 422154  phillip.vincent@southandvale.gov.uk 

 

To enquire about the council’s work on community safety and PSPOs, please contact: 

Elizabeth Smith 

Anti-Social Behaviour Co-ordinator 

South Oxfordshire/ Vale of White Horse District Council 

01235 422590 

elizabeth.smith@southandvale.gov.uk 

 

Page 28

Agenda Item 6



Consultation Summary – Proposal to create a Public Spaces Protection Order (PSPO) in Thame – February 2018  

APPENDIX A – CONSULTATION 
SUMMARY  
 

 

Proposal to create a Public Spaces 
Protection Order (PSPO) in Thame 
PROPOSED CHANGE 
South Oxfordshire District Council is proposing to introduce a Public Spaces Protection Order 
(PSPO) in Thame. 

The aim of the proposed order is to tackle persistent anti-social behaviour occurring in a public 
area which is having a significant, detrimental impact on the quality of life of those in the local 
community. 

The order, if put in place, will mean that police are given discretionary powers to: 

1. request people stop drinking alcohol and confiscate it if they refuse, and; 
2. stop groups of people causing alarm, distress, harassment or a nuisance in a 

public place 

The police would enforce the order and officers could issue Fixed Penalty Notices (FPNs) of 
£100 to people who breach these conditions. We are proposing that the order applies to people 
aged 18 years and above.  

The wording of the proposed order is provided in Appendix A, along with a map showing where 
we think the order should apply in the town.  

WHY WE ARE PROPOSING TO MAKE THIS CHANGE 
The district council already has alcohol restrictions in place in Thame in the form of a 
Designated Public Place Order (DPPO) which has been in place since 2009. This Order will 
automatically convert to a PSPO in October (in accordance with legislation – Anti-Social 
Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014). As PSPOs can tackle more than just alcohol related 
anti-social behaviour (ASB), we are taking the opportunity to a) check that the alcohol 
restrictions are still required in Thame and b) consider if there is a need to include any other 
significant, persistent anti-social behaviour (ASB) issues that are negatively affecting the local 
community. 
 
Following initial discussions with a number of agency stakeholders, we are proposing to keep 
the same DPPO restriction relating to alcohol on the new PSPO. If someone is drinking in a 
public area but not causing any problems they will not be affected by the order. Also, the 
order does not apply to licenced premises, including beer gardens or seating areas. 
 
In addition, we are also including a condition to help stop groups of people from causing alarm, 
harassment, distress or a nuisance to others in a public place. There is evidence to support 

Page 29

Agenda Item 6



Consultation Summary – Proposal to create a Public Spaces Protection Order (PSPO) in Thame – February 2018  

this request: over the past few months, the town has been a hot spot for ASB perpetrated by 
groups of people mainly aged 18+. The matter has been a Local Police Area priority due to its 
impact on the local community.  

 
We believe that creating a new PSPO which addresses the problems of alcohol consumption 
and group related anti-social behaviour will have a positive impact on the wellbeing of the 
community. 

PUBLIC CONSULTATION 
The council wants to consult members of the local community before the new order is created.  
We are therefore seeking comments on these proposals to inform our decision whether or not 
to proceed with this. 

Members of the public are able to comment on the proposal to create a PSPO in Thame by 
completing an online survey, available from 23 October 2017.  Paper copies of the survey form 
can also be requested from the council’s Corporate Consultation Officer by phoning 01235 
422154.  

Responses to the public consultation must be received by midnight Monday 20 November 
2017. 

  

Page 30

Agenda Item 6



Consultation Summary – Proposal to create a Public Spaces Protection Order (PSPO) in Thame – February 2018  

APPENDIX B – CONSULTATION WORDING 

Proposal to create a Public Spaces Protection 
Order (PSPO) in Thame 
 

COMMENT FORM 
Please see supporting information explaining the proposed order before completing this form. 

1. In what capacity do you wish to respond to this consultation? 
 

 As a local resident 
 On behalf of a local business 
 On behalf of a community or voluntary group  
Other (please specify) 

 

2. What is your postcode?  
 

 

3. What is the name of your organisation or group?  
 

4. How far do you agree or disagree with the proposed Public Spaces Protection Order 
(PSPO) for Thame? (Please tick) 
 

 Strongly 
agree 

Agree Neither agree 
nor disagree 

Disagree Strongly 
disagree 

Requesting people 
stop drinking alcohol 
in public spaces and 
confiscating it if they 
refuse 

     

Stopping groups of 
people causing alarm, 
distress, harassment 
or a nuisance in a 
public place 

     

5. Do you think the PSPO should apply to people aged 

 16 years and above 
 18 years and above 

Page 31

Agenda Item 6



Consultation Summary – Proposal to create a Public Spaces Protection Order (PSPO) in Thame – February 2018  

 Other (please specify) 
 

 

6. Please explain your answer 
 

 

7. Do you have any comments or suggestions on the proposed Public Spaces 
Protection Order (PSPO) for Thame? 

 

Thank you for your responses. 

Would you like to hear from us in the future? 
 Yes No 
I am happy for the council to get in touch about 
the comment I have made 

  

I would like to be kept informed about other 
consultations being undertaken by the council 

  

 
If yes, please provide us with some contact details below. 

Your information will only be used for the purpose of contacting you in relation to council 
consultations. 

 

Name  

Email  

Phone  

 

 

 

 

Page 32

Agenda Item 6



Consultation Summary – Proposal to create a Public Spaces Protection Order (PSPO) in Thame – February 2018  

APPENDIX C – MAP OF PROPOSED PSPO AREA 

 
 

Page 33

Agenda Item 6



Consultation Summary – Proposal to create a Public Spaces Protection Order (PSPO) in Thame – February 2018  

APPENDIX D – YOUTH CONSULTATION 
As the proposed PSPO condition for targeting group ASB was identified to have the potential to 
disproportionality affect young people in the area; a separate youth consultation was carried 
out in partnership with Lord William’s School & Sixth Form and Thame Youth Café.  

MEETING WITH SCHOOL COUNCIL REPRESENTATIVES 
The district council’s Anti-Social Behaviour Co-ordinator, Elizabeth Smith and Young People’s 
Co-ordinator, Karen Tolley attended a meeting with the school council representatives of Lord 
William’s school from year 11, 12 and 13 (ages 15-18) to seek their opinion on the proposed 
PSPO.  

Students were informed of the proposed PSPO that is going to be coming into effect and asked 
if in they had experienced any problems relating to group ASB.  

Only two of the school council representatives live in Thame, the others live in surrounding 
villages such as Chinnor and Sydenham. However, all the school council representatives 
except one stated they spent time in Thame town centre and reported behaviour such as:  

- Groups of three plus hanging out in the bus shelter even though they were not waiting 
for the bus.  

- Shop lifting in the local Co-op.  
- Groups hanging out in the hut in the children’s play park are uncomfortable to walk past.  

Students were asked if they agreed with the proposal to grant police the power to disperse 
groups of three or more responsible for ASB in the area. The overwhelming majority of pupils 
agreed with this proposal for the reasons outlined beneath:  

- “Make civilians more comfortable”  
- Would see a decrease to ASB and make people feel safer 
- It would act as a deterrent for people committing worse crimes. “Prevent anything from 

happening in the future”  
- As the PSPO is only in certain areas, it is not restricting groups associating everywhere 

– they still have places they can go.  
- “Limit the stress faced to staff and customers at cafes etc. “ 
- “Limits harassment and vandalism” 
- Makes Thames a more accessible area. 
- Elderly people would be made to feel more comfortable.  
- “I think it should be added as although I haven’t had any experiences personally, I am 

aware of those have been made feel intimidated”  
- “Parents with children might find it easier because small children can be easily 

intimidated”  
- “people going into town won’t feel threatened”  

Pupils also considered what the negative consequences of this power may be and responded 
as follows:  

- Could be perceived as making socialising with friends illegal.  
- Some teenagers may not know the difference between right and wrong if they have not 

been properly educated.  

Page 34

Agenda Item 6



Consultation Summary – Proposal to create a Public Spaces Protection Order (PSPO) in Thame – February 2018  

- The groups affected will all be young people.  
- Could people be told to move on when they haven’t done anything wrong. 
- Relies on police to enforce who already have limited resources.  - Concerns over how 

this will be made aware to everyone.  

To address the concerns pupils highlighted, it was clarified that socialising with friends will not 
be illegal, only refusing to move on after causing harassment/alarm/distress or nuisance will be 
illegal. It was also confirmed that although young people may be the most likely to socialise in 
groups around Thame, the PSPO will be enforced against all groups responsible for causing 
harassment/alarm/distress or nuisance. Arrangements are also being made as to having a 
PCSO from Thame talk in an assembly when the PSPO goes live (Spring 2018). 

Students were then asked what age limit would be appropriate to enforce the PSPO from, 
bearing in mind that the punishment is a fine. Again, the overwhelming majority of students 
were in support of a 16+ age limit being introduced. The reasons they gave are as follows:  

- “16+ should be fined as I don’t think the issue is exclusive to 18+. RE: ‘16+ don’t have 
jobs’, neither do some 18 year olds. If there wasn’t a fine, I don’t think people would stop 
their behaviour, just on a police warning”  

- Fining from 16+ would mean that parents would be aware of their child’s behaviour and 
could take steps to prevent it happening again. 

- Money raised from fines could go towards repair costs for criminal damage/vandalism 
that this type of behaviour is associated with.  

- £60/£100 is a lot of money to a 16yearold, so would be an effective deterrent.  
- 16yearolds are old enough to have responsibility for themselves and they will be given 

the opportunity to move on before being fined.  
- Introducing for only 18+ would really limit the effectiveness of this order.  

Some cons to introducing the fines to 16 year olds were also highlighted:  

- An alternative punishment such as community service would be more appropriate for 
under 18s.  

- Income/backgrounds of families should be considered.  
- If parents pay, offenders would not necessarily learn their lesson as they have not 

necessarily faced any consequences.  
- “People behaving in such a way usually come from poorer backgrounds. You’re making 

the poor poorer.”  

It was confirmed with students that the income and backgrounds of families would be 
considered both when the police use discretion in issuing the fine and when the council pursue 
receiving payment. Payment plans to pay the fine back in manageable portions will be made 
available to those who need it.   

Overall after all questions had been asked and answered, the majority of school council 
representatives were in favour of the proposed PSPO being introduced with an age limit of 16.  

 
PRESENTATIONS IN TUTOR GROUPS 
Following the meeting with the school council and taking on board the suggestion to raise 
awareness amongst their peers, a presentation and a vote was carried out in Tutor Groups at 
Lord Williams. The presentation included an overview of what the PSPO was proposing and 

Page 35

Agenda Item 6



Consultation Summary – Proposal to create a Public Spaces Protection Order (PSPO) in Thame – February 2018  

asked students which age group would be most appropriate for the group ASB condition of the 
PSPO.   

26 tutor groups took part in the vote (Five Year Nines’, Ten Year Tens’, Six Year 11’s, Five 
Year 12/13’s) totalling just under 600 students.  

54 per cent of students supported the PSPO and the lower age limit of 16. 

YOUTH CAFÉ CONSULTATION 
The youth café runs weekly on Tuesday evenings and is free to attend for 14-16 year olds. The 
district council’s Anti-Social Behaviour Co-ordinator, Elizabeth Smith and Young People’s 
Coordinator, Karen Tolley attended the session to speak with individuals and gauge their views 
on the proposed PSPO.  

All attendees of the youth café were spoken to informally and were given the opportunity to ask 
any questions they had about the proposed PSPO before being asked if they in support of it 
and for what age would it be most appropriate. All 16 of the youths that were spoken to 
supported the proposed PSPO with 94 per cent of them supporting the 16+ age limit. Several 
individuals also relayed accounts of themselves being victimised by groups in Thame, stating 
that the problem was widespread and known to most.  
 

Page 36

Agenda Item 6



Cabinet Report 

Report of Head of Planning 

Author: Samantha Allen 

Telephone: 07717 274692 

E-mail: samantha.allen@southandvale.gov.uk 
Wards affected: Wallingford 

Cabinet member responsible: Felix Bloomfield 

E-mail: Felix.Bloomfield@southoxon.gov.uk 
To: CABINET BRIEFING
Date: 5 April 2018

Adoption of Wallingford Conservation 

Area Appraisal and Boundary Review 

Recommendations 

(a) That the Wallingford Conservation Area boundary is adopted as per the proposed
boundary shown at Appendix 1.

(b) That the Wallingford Conservation Area Appraisal as amended following public
consultation is adopted as part of the Development Plan evidence base and is a material
planning consideration.

(c) Delegate to the Head of Planning in consultation with the Cabinet Member for
Planning to make minor changes, typographical corrections or non-material amendments
to the Wallingford Conservation Area Appraisal and associated documents prior to formal
publication and to undertake necessary statutory actions to implement agreed
recommendations.

Purpose of Report 

1. The purpose of this report is to provide a summary of the representations received
during the public consultation on the Wallingford Conservation Area Appraisal and
Boundary Review and to detail what changes have been made to the document and
boundary as a result in order to seek formal adoption of the appraisal and designated
boundary.

Corporate Objectives 

2.  The Conservation Area Appraisal accords with 2016-2020 corporate objective; Housing
and Infrastructure by seeking high quality, sympathetic design.

Page 37

Agenda Item 7



Background 

Purpose of the Conservation Area Appraisal and Boundary Review: 

3. Under Sections 69 & 71 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act
1990 local authorities have a duty to designate conservation areas and from time to
time to review the boundaries.  Such areas are defined as ‘areas of special
architectural or historic interest, the character or appearance of which it is desirable to
preserve or enhance’. This Conservation Area Appraisal Document is the mechanism
by which the local authority defines the special interest of these areas and they form
part of the Local Authority Development Plan evidence base.

4. Under Section 71 of the above act, we have exercised our duty to formulate and
produce proposals for the preservation and enhancement of the conservation area.
This appraisal for Wallingford forms part of our rolling programme of providing
conservation area appraisals for all the South Oxfordshire designated conservation
areas.

5. The appraisal document forms part of the evidence base for the Development Plan. It
should be used in the development management process to manage positive change
within the designated conservation area or its setting to minimise harm and encourage
preservation or enhancement.

6. Internal consultation to DM and Policy Colleagues was undertaken in September 2017
and feedback and responses received fed into the draft document that was issued for
public consultation.

7. A six week period of public consultation commenced on Wednesday 11 October 2017
and as part of this, the Conservation and Design Team held a drop-in exhibition day at
Centre 70 in Wallingford on Wednesday 8 November.

Summary of the Appraisal Document and alterations to the Proposed Boundary 

8. The document provides a summary of the history of Wallingford’s development, an
assessment of its historic and architectural interest by character area, a gazetteer of
local interest buildings (non-listed structures) and a series of illustrative maps showing
various details of spatial analysis.

9. The Conservation and Design Team propose revisions to the existing boundary. These
include rationalisation of the boundary where it crosses through buildings or plots and
exclusion of areas that no longer meet the criteria for designation.

Summary of consultation responses received 

10. In total, 14 responses were received during the public consultation period. 10
responses were via the online web survey, 2 responses were received via email and 2
responses were paper copies. A consultation statement summarising the detailed
comments is attached at Appendix 2.

Page 38

Agenda Item 7



11. No comments were received from the Town Council or Neighbourhood Plan Group but
both parties were invited to provide comments. The Conservation and Design Team
met with both groups immediately prior to the commencement of the consultation
period.

12. Overall, the responses received were supportive of the content of the document with
two respondents providing corrections to factual errors, typographical errors and
supplying additional details about the historic and development of the town.

13. Eight respondents commented specifically on the proposed boundary revisions. Most
comments sought the retention of those areas proposed for removal from the
designated boundary and sought to increase the designated area. There were two
comments which suggested the boundary be reduced.

Proposed changes to the consultation version of the Appraisal Document 

14. The following specific changes have been made to the document (shown at Appendix
3) following the public consultation:

• Typographical errors and factual errors have been corrected and can be seen in
the track changes version of the appraisal document.

• Additional information regarding the Europa Nostra Awards has been included
as this provides further evidence of the Evidential, Historical and Communal
Value of the Conservation Area.

• Further assessment of No.29 Goldsmiths Lane has been done following
comments regarding its significance and condition and this building has been
removed from the identified Local Interest Buildings.

Proposed changes to the Designated Boundary 

15. There are five areas where the existing Conservation Area Boundary is proposed for
revision. The boundary is shown at Appendix 1.

• An area of land which falls within the existing Wallingford School site is
proposed to be removed from the boundary. It is proposed to align the
conservation area boundary with the physical historic features of the ramparts
ditch and footpath to the north of the Bullcroft. This boundary is also the
boundary of the Scheduled Ancient Monument and has high
historic/archaeological interest.

• The boundary is proposed to be rationalised to include the more of Wallingford
Footpath 17 to the north-west of the Bullcroft. This area has high
historic/archaeological interest.

• It is proposed to remove the residential building to the west of the fire station.
This building does not meet the criteria of special historic and architectural
interest to warrant inclusion within the boundary.

Page 39

Agenda Item 7



• It is proposed to rationalise the boundary at the north of Squire’s Walk near to
St Johns Green to exclude the twentieth-century domestic plots but retain the
existing open space that once formed part of the larger St John’s House site.
This adjustment has been made following valid concerns that the boundary is
not clear as to whether or not the historic wall enclosing the former St Johns
House site would fall within the boundary or outside of it and to ensure that the
boundary is rationalised around defined plots rather than going through them.

• It is proposed to include a number of plots on the east side of Reading Road
where the late 19th and early 20th Century dwellings are characteristic of local
vernacular and make a positive contribution to the historic and architectural
interest of Wallingford and meet the criteria to warrant inclusion.

Options 

16. In respect of the proposal to extend the conservation area boundary and adopt the
conservation area appraisal the options for Cabinet are;

a) to find that the proposed extended area identified in the appraisal is of special
architectural or historic interest and the character or appearance of which is
desirable to preserve or enhance, the Council should designate the whole area
as a conservation area

b) to find that the proposed extended area identified in the appraisal is not of
special architectural or historic interest and the character or appearance of
which is not desirable to preserve or enhance, then the Council should not
designate the proposed extension as a conservation area

c) To find that there is an area of special architectural or historic interest and the
character or appearance of which is desirable to preserve or enhance, but that
the boundary should be different to that proposed and having identified and
justified the difference, then to designate that area as a conservation area.

17. Based upon officers’ assessment of the area as presented in the conservation area
appraisal and the responses received during public consultation, it is recommended
that the proposed extension to the boundary is adopted and the whole area is
designated Wallingford Conservation Area, together with adopting the accompanying
Appraisal, which is in line with Option (a).

Financial Implications 

18. The process of designating a conservation area entails a small external cost to
advertise the designation of a new boundary, to meet the statutory notification
requirements, as described in the legal implications section below.

19. Dwellings within the proposed extension once designated would be required to apply
for planning permission for certain works no longer benefitting from permitted
development rights. There will be some increased work to the council arising from the
processing of those applications but some of the cost of processing these applications
would be recovered from the planning fee. Additionally, there may be a small increase
in overall workload for the service that might not be recovered because some cases
will be more complex than average. However, having regard to the small number of

Page 40

Agenda Item 7



additional properties that the extension would cover, this impact is likely to be very 
modest relative to annual workloads. 

20. The modest costs associated with the above points will be met from existing budgets.

Legal Implications 

21. The Appraisal meets the Council’s obligations required by the Planning (Listed Building
and Conservation Areas) Act 1990. Under Sections 69 and 71 of the Act, the Council
should review conservation area boundaries from time-to-time and formulate and
publish proposals for the preservation and enhancement of any parts of their area
which are conservation areas. This Appraisal for Wallingford forms part of the Council’s
rolling programme of providing conservation area appraisals for all its designated
conservation areas.

22. The principal legal effect of the designation of an area as a conservation area is control
over demolition of buildings (including structures classed as buildings in planning
legislation) and control over works to trees. In determining applications, the council also
has a duty under the Planning Acts to have regard to the desirability of preserving or
enhancing the character or appearance of the area and there are less generous
permitted development rights, under the Town and Country Planning (General
Permitted Development) Order 2015.

23. The Act requires that the designation of a new conservation area or variation to it be
advertised in the London Gazette, a local newspaper and registered as a local land
charge. The Secretary of State (DDCMS) and Historic England will also be notified.

Risks 

24. No strategic or operational risks associated with the matters covered in this report have
been identified.

Conclusion 

25. Having regard to the evidence collected and presented in the Wallingford Conservation
Area Appraisal, and to the responses received during consultation, it is recommended
that it is adopted for development management purposes.  It is also recommended that
the designated boundary of Wallingford Conservation Area be amended as proposed.

Appendices 

• Appendix 1: Wallingford Conservation Area Proposed Boundary Map

• Appendix 2: Consultation Statement

• Appendix 3: Track Changes version of amended pages of the Consultation Appraisal
Document

Page 41

Agenda Item 7



Appendix 1 

Wallingford Conservation Area Proposed Boundary Map 

Page 42

Agenda Item 7



Wallingford Conservation Area Appraisal    Consultation Draft  October/November 2017 

Alteration to proposed 
conservation area boundary - 
see extract below 

Page 43

Agenda Item 7

SAV_AllenS
Textbox
Alteration to proposed boundary following public consultation



Appendix 2  

Consultation Statement 

Page 44

Agenda Item 7



1 
 

Wallingford Conservation Area Appraisal 

and Boundary Extension  

Consultation Statement 

  

Page 45

Agenda Item 7



2 
 

Introduction 

1. The purpose of this statement is to provide a summary of the representations 
received during the public consultation on the Wallingford Conservation Area 
Appraisal and Boundary Review held between Wednesday 11 October and 
Wednesday 22 November. 

 

Background 

Purpose of the Conservation Area Appraisal and Boundary Review 
 
2. Under Sections 69 & 71 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation 

Areas) Act 1990 local authorities have a duty to designate conservation areas 
and from time to time to review the boundaries. The Conservation Area Appraisal 
Document is the mechanism by which the local authority defines the special 
interest of these areas and they form part of the Local Authority Development 
Plan evidence base. 

3. Under Section 71 of the above act, we have exercised our duty to formulate and 
produce proposals for the preservation and enhancement of the conservation 
area.  

4. The appraisal document forms part of the evidence base for the Development 
Plan. It should be used in the development management process to manage 
positive change within the designated conservation area or its setting to minimise 
harm and encourage preservation or enhancement. 

 

Summary of the Appraisal Document and alterations to the Proposed 

Boundary 

5. The document provides a summary of the history of Wallingford’s development, 
an assessment of its historic and architectural interest by character area, a 
gazetteer of local interest buildings (non-listed structures) and a series of 
illustrative maps showing various details of spatial analysis. 

6. The Conservation and Design Team proposed revisions to the existing boundary. 
These include rationalisation of the boundary where it crosses through buildings 
or plots and exclusion of areas that no longer meet the criteria for designation.  

 

Summary of consultation responses received  

7. In total, 14 responses were received during the public consultation period. 10 
responses were via the online web survey, 2 responses were received via email 
and 2 responses were paper copies.  

Page 46

Agenda Item 7



3 
 

8. Overall, the responses received were supportive of the content of the document 
with two respondents providing corrections to factual errors, typographical errors 
and supplying additional details about the historic and development of the town. 

9. Eight respondents commented specifically on the proposed boundary revisions. 
Most comments sought the retention of those areas proposed for removal from 
the designated boundary and sought to increase the designated area. There 
were two comments which suggested the boundary be reduced.  

  

Page 47

Agenda Item 7



4 
 

Name Individual/Organisation Comment Summary Conservation and Design Team Response 

Mr Alec Hayton Individual The removal of the small area off Squire's 
Walk is strange. The buildings are 
attached to St. John's House and formed 
part of the domestic arrangements of that 
building which is of historical interest. 

The boundary wall is proposed to be 
retained within the CA boundary. Works to 
alter the wall will require planning permission 
and the application would be considered with 
regard to the impact on the setting of the CA 
and neighbouring LBs. The C20 
development to the rear of St Johns House 
are not considered to meet the criteria of 
architectural/historical interest to be retained 
in the conservation area. 
ACTION: Consider minor boundary change 
to retain the wall and open space but 
exclude the C20 development. 

Mr Albert Leslie 
Walton 

Individual As the owner of [a property adjoining the 
Bull Croft] it would seem that the boundary 
at the rear of my property is in fact my 
back garden fence. Does this involve me 
in any changes or responsibility? 
I assume that the public footpath and 
beyond would in future, be kept in usable 
condition. 

The boundary in this area has been 
extended slightly to include the full extent of 
the SAM here. This does not affect the 
boundary with the properties along Barncroft 
as the Scheduled monument line already 
exists here and any works affecting it have a 
higher statutory impact than the 
conservation area. We are proposing to align 
the boundary to emphasise the significance 
of the SAM and the embankment around it. 

Dr Zac Etheridge Individual I would like to see further extension of the 
conservation area along Reading Road, 
which has many buildings of significant 
interest 

The assessment of the dwellings along 
Reading Road was informed by their 
architectural/historic contribution and their 
completeness in terms of design, plot layout 
etc. It was not considered that additional 
development along Reading Road met these 
tests and very soon the houses become part 
of the Winterbrook CA rather than 
Wallingford. 

Professor 
Malcolm Airs 

Individual No objections to the revisions to the 
boundaries and would like to record my full 

ACTION: Make to reference the Europa 
Nostra Awards and Secretary of State 

P
age 48

A
genda Item

 7



5 
 

support, subject to the following 
observations. 
 
The Local Planning Authority and 
Community should be celebrated for the 
work done to designate and later 
transform the Market Place which received 
two Europa Nostra Awards in the 1980s. 
 
Reference should be made to the planning 
history regarding the archaeology at the 
Castle Grounds site and handing over to 
the Council. 
 
Public Realm description should include 
references to the iron kerbs and railings 
made locally by Wilders. 
 
Reference should be made to areas of 
positive development such as at Waitrose 
car park where historic walls were 
retained. 
 
Limited traffic through the Market Place 
adds to the vitality of the town and 
removing it should not be encouraged. 

designation of CA as outstanding when 
designated - also reference made to Europa 
Awards in Communal Value section (see 
next point). 
Elevate Communal Value from Medium to 
High - suggest agree with this statement and 
include detail of the historic communal value 
of areas in the town reinforced by ongoing 
communal uses and subsequent recognition 
of Council and Community working through 
Europa Nostra awards. 
 
Request made to reference planning history 
decision that led to handing over of Castle 
Grounds to the Town - suggest no action 
needed as the archaeology section is more 
specifically about historic interest rather than 
the planning history of the town. 
 
P36 public realm reference to date of 
organisation of market place - suggest 
update text to include reference to date and 
Wallingford Local Plan. 
 
ACTION: Include references to Wilders 

Ms Anne Doherty Individual Agreed with Appraisal, Proposed 
Boundary and Recommendations in the 
Management Plan section 

No action required 

Philip and Wendy 
Burton 

Individual Factual errors in the draft Appraisal are:- 
Location: Oak House is in New Road (not 
New Street - p 56 & App A p 17)) 
1840 Builder (and later Mayor): Mr Hilliard, 
not Hillard. (App A p 17) 

Errors: 
Suggest references to New Street corrected 
to New Road throughout. 
Suggest spelling of Hilliard not Hillard 
corrected. P

age 49

A
genda Item

 7



6 
 

Oak Cottage: Is physically to the right 
(East) of Oak House - it is the building 
described as 18th/19thC, not the left 
(West), as seen from New Road.  (App A p 
17)  
 
Anomalies are:- 
Photo-montage (App A p 17):   
Highlighting this made-up view of Oak 
House is misleading - its prime neo-
Georgian facade is not emphasised. The 
assemblage of four separate photographs 
is crude and unatttractive. 
Burgage Plots:   Oak House in its burgage 
plot is dissimilar in character from the 
houses on the West side of Wood St, so, 
like the Green Tree plot immediately 
opposite in New Road, logically it sits with 
the Market Place plots - not least being 
similar in character to the nearby (original) 
houses in St Mary's Street.  Buildings of 
Townscape Importance: The 2012 draft 
recognised the merits of Oak House, Oak 
Cottage and Spyers Court with this title, 
but in the new draft specific buildings have 
unaccountably lost such value. 
Views: The 2012 draft described the view 
East from St Leonard's Square as 
'uninteresting', whereas in the new draft 
the identical view is boosted to 'dynamic'.   
This is clearly at odds with its downgrading 
of the very buildings in that view. 

Suggest no change to references of Oak 
Cottage/Oak House not altered, these 
references are to do with the photograph 
and not their geographic location. 
 
 
 
Anomalies: 
Photo-montage - suggest no change as this 
photo is representative of the view possible 
from the public realm. 
Burgage plots - reference could be made 
more explicit to the maps which shows that 
evidence of burgage plots extends beyond 
Market Place and Wood Street but no 
additional need to clarify differences in 
character of these plots as the Oak House 
plot is not typical of the medieval plots of 
Wallingford. 
Buildings of Townscape Merit - terminology 
in the document has been updated to reflect 
current practice and all non-designated 
heritage assets have been identified in the 
Local Interest section rather than breaking 
them up into various other categories. This is 
to be consistent with good practice and also 
the terminology within the NPPF which only 
has one category - non-designated heritage 
assets - rather than multiple layers: suggest 
no change but make aware that no value 
has been removed or reduced. 
Views - as above terminology has been 
updated and follows good practice. Again 
there has been no downgrading of buildings 
through the use of revised terminology - 

P
age 50

A
genda Item

 7



7 
 

please see definitions of the terms in the 
text. Suggest no change. 

Cllr Rosslyn  
Lester 

Parish or Town Council I would like to see more buildings put into 
the "listed" quality. And our garden 
coloured yellow as parkland - protecting it 
from being built on or developed. 
 
I would like to see all areas kept in the 
conservation area esp. Wallingford School 
- near the Black Ditch - And the small area 
in Wydham Gardens - as we know this to 
be part of the Old St Johns Hospital and a 
burial ground.I would also like to make 
sure that Park Farm House is listed and 
the old school next door. Hopefully making 
sure that they both retain many of their 
features (i.e. windows) plus to list the 
Towing Club Bar as this was the summer 
house for Castle Priory. 
 
Listed St Leonards Lane terrace houses. 
All houses from the bridge to the traffic 
lights (buildings)Houses in Thames Street, 
further on from the rowing club. Very large 
and beautiful important to preserve these 
areas. 

The LPA is not responsible for listing 
buildings and we can only identify them as 
non-designated heritage assets. Anyone can 
nominate a building for listing by contacting 
the Historic England designation team. 
 
The important open space category does not 
preclude development. Where they have 
been identified, although these spaces are 
private, they make an important contribution 
to the public realm.  
 
The northern part of the boundary has been 
re-drawn to follow the scheduled ancient 
monument to emphasise its importance. The 
archaeological constraints still wash over the 
school area but it is not considered to be 
worthy built form that should be included. 
 
The Old St John Hospital site is not legible 
as a result of recent developments. The 
historic boundary wall would not be removed 
but the area of modern housing removed as 
it is less historically characteristic. ACTION: 
Suggest boundary revised in part. 

Henry Venners Individual I note the intention to extend the CA to the 
east side of Reading Road.  Whilst I 
acknowledge that the layout of the 
frontage of these houses is pleasing and 
also the spacing of them, I can really see 
no need for their rear gardens to be 
included.  There is no public perception or 
enjoyment of this area and I believe that 

The rear gardens of these plots form part of 
the old Chalmore Gardens and good 
practice is to follow a clear legible boundary 
line which the rear garden plots provides. 
The inclusion of an entire building plot 
enables a clear boundary to be drawn and 
avoids issues of partial inclusions within P

age 51

A
genda Item

 7



8 
 

including such an unimportant backland 
area would serve to diminish the value of 
the better truly historic and spatially 
important/characteristic parts of the town. 
Therefore I would suggest that the area be 
limited. 
 
If, accepting that the frontage areas of 
those properties to be included is 
important and deserving of protection then 
I cannot see why houses further south 
area not included.  Their frontages are 
equally as important to character at this 
entrance to the town and the ‘start’ of the 
unspoilt part of the town coming from the 
south appears quite arbitrary when I feel 
the ‘character’ of this area starts right as 
one cross the brook. 
 
I do not quote follow why no changes are 
proposed to the north of the Cross Keys 
on St George’s Road. There has been 
considerable infilling on St George’s Road 
recently.  The pub car park gives the only 
remaining glimpse of the very significant 
and sensitive saxon embankments from 
outside them and also the listed folly on 
the highpoint in the SW of the Bull Croft.  
This has a lovely setting and the trees may 
not always be there. There are no other 
places on the periphery of the 
embankments in the town where it can be 
appreciated so much as at the rear of the 
Cross Keys, which stands enjoyably in 
large grounds/space.  This seems to be 

conservation areas which should be 
avoided. ACTION: suggest no change. 
 
Extending further south along the Reading 
Road - the architectural and spatial qualities 
of these houses was considered to be of 
less consistent pattern and historic 
significance and so not included within the 
boundary.  
 
Extending north of the Cross Keys was also 
not pursued as this area is not of the same 
quality of architectural of historic interest as 
the other areas. The embankments are 
within the designated area and inclusion of 
much more modern development 
inconsistent with pattern was not considered 
of sufficient interest to meet the tests. The 
setting of the conservation area is a material 
consideration in planning terms and how it is 
experienced is an important consideration 
when understanding significance. The 
inclusion of 'setting' is not good practice and 
would merely alter the character of the 
setting itself making it harder to quantify as a 
feature that contributes to significance. 
ACTION: Suggest no change. 

P
age 52

A
genda Item

 7



9 
 

underplayed in the assessment in my 
view. 

Jaqui Dingle For CEH I am only comfortable with the boundary 
changes regarding the Saxon 
embankments on two provisos as follows: 
 
1 the trees in the new boundary area are 
made safe before the restrictions apply are 
there are several branches which are 
hanging half off in the trees at that spot.  I 
have reported this before but nothing has 
been done and I think they could fall on a 
pedestrian on the path if very windy.  
 
2 the map appears to show the new line 
as going across the back gardens of 
Barncroft as they back onto the path by 
the embankments I presume from the 
wording that this Is not intended but the 
line should be made thinner and clearer 
that it does not go into the garden 
boundaries If it were to go into the garden 
boundaries this would be inappropriate 
and could encompass a garden wall only 
built in the 1990s 

For clarification the boundary follows the 
garden boundaries and does not draw them 
into the conservation area any more than as 
existing. The boundary follows the 
scheduled monument designation and 
therefore any works requiring scheduled 
monument consent would not be altered by 
this and would still be required regardless of 
the boundary change. 

Mr John Carroll For Carroll and Partners Generally a useful appraisal. Some of the 
Local Interest buildings included in 
Appendix A : ie - 29 Goldsmiths Lane and 
rear of Corn Exchange, have little 
aesthetic value or quality and their 
inclusion should not prevent appropriate 
alteration or replacement. 
 
Remove the added conservation area to 
the east of Reading Road. Most of these 

Although the buildings are altered internally 
or extended to the rear; the frontage of the 
buildings remains characteristic, the villa 
pairs remain legible and plot spacing 
consistent with the historic pattern of 
development along the Reading Road and 
hence are worthy of inclusion. 
 
Buildings identified within the local interest 
appendix have been considered against the 

P
age 53

A
genda Item

 7



10 
 

buildings already substantially altered or 
extended. 

test of the local listing guidance by Historic 
England. Having visited No.29 Goldsmiths 
Lane again it is clear that a previous 
approval for works has stripped the building 
of all interest. ACTION: Suggest this is 
removed from the LIB.  
However, 4 Market Place former range still 
makes a contribution to the street scene and 
evidence that is it not worthy of addition has 
not been presented by these consultations 
comments. ACTION: Suggest no change to 
Wood Street environs. 

Michael Simpson For Carroll and Partners Map 13 – Trees, landscape and open 
spaces On behalf of client/site owner, we 
comment as follows:  
The garden of 16 Castle Street has a high 
boundary wall to the street, and only forms 
a ‘valuable break from the built-up area’ 
because existing development to the rear 
of the garden is set well back. 
The statement ‘views through this gap to 
the trees on the Bullcroft form an important 
backdrop’ is disingenuous. The only 
vantage point from which to appreciate 
these views are the ramparts in the Castle 
Gardens, from where the view is of trees 
in the foreground, i.e. within Castle 
Gardens, and the line of yew trees 
adjacent the Castle Gardens Wall. Map 13 
identifies 5 ‘Significant but only one of 
these is a native species. 
We suggest that the appraisal in this 
respect is misleading and inappropriate. 
 
Appendix A, page 6 – 29 Goldsmiths Lane 

The green and verdant nature of trees in 
Wallingford, either in public spaces or 
private, make an important contribution to 
the character of the area and how it is 
experienced. These trees, whether native or 
not, do exactly this and are identified as 
such. This does not affect the current 
statutory protection on the trees but adds to 
the evidence that there is a distinct verdant 
character to Wallingford that contributes to is 
special interest and character. ACTION: 
Suggest no changes. 
 
29 Goldsmiths Lane. Further assessment of 
the building shows that much of its historic 
significance has been lost through near total 
removal of historic fabric. ACTION: Suggest 
remove from LIBs  
 
Buildings to the rear of 4 Market Place 
continue to illustrate the role of the historic 
burgage plots and the ancillary nature of the 
built form in this area. Assessment of the 

P
age 54

A
genda Item

 7



11 
 

The appraisal describes these buildings as 
C19 semi-detached. While we concur that 
the building may have C19 origins it has 
clearly been much altered, with one half of 
the building added at a later date, and 
possibly the bay window also being added 
later. The whole exterior is rendered over, 
its historical value is greatly diminished.  
 
Appendix A, page 18 – Buildings to the 
rear of the Corn Exchange 
This item would appear to include the 
building to the rear of 4 Market Place, 
which is the subject of a current planning 
application. The following comments are 
made specifically in reference to the 
building that forms part of 4 Market Place: 
 
The provenance of the building to the rear 
of 4 Market Place is questionable. Its 
authenticity is undermined by subsequent 
alterations of the architectural detailing. 
The north elevation has been heavily 
altered and the west elevation is definitely 
a later construction, circa 1950’s vintage, 
as is much of the interior. The Diocletian 
windows in themselves, now with render 
finish concealing the brick detailing, don’t 
constitute an asset of such significance to 
warrant retaining particularly when, looked 
at in the round, the asset is of such poor 
quality and in need of heavy refurbishment 
to bring it back into service. 

buildings has not demonstrated through the 
appraisal process that the buildings no 
longer provide this important character, in 
fact the opposite. The appraisal does not 
deal with viability of buildings or their quality 
for re-use. Whether identified as of Local 
Interest or not, sound and robust justification 
would be needed for total demolition within 
the conservation area. Suggest no change 
needed. 

Tim Coleman For Winslade Investments My company Winslade Investments owns 
28 Goldsmiths Lane and the former 

ACTION: No.29 Goldsmiths Lane is 
removed from LIBs. 

P
age 55

A
genda Item

 7



12 
 

Wallingford Portcullis Social Club at 28 
Goldsmiths Lane. I write to set out a my 
view in respect of the above property 
which has been noted as a "Local Interest 
Building" in Character area 3. 
I do not believe the building warrants this 
designation and should be removed from 
this classification. The building is very 
unattractive and currently has a blank 
elevation on Goldsmiths Lane with only 
one small high level window. 
A planning consent P16/S3593/HH has 
been implemented. I would therefore ask 
that it is not classified as being of Local 
Interest. 
 
 
Wallingford Brewery Buildings - in 
particular the part forming the former 
social club. The buildings contain 
elements of unattractive 1970's infill. The 
buildings generally require significant work 
and attention to enable a worthwhile 
productive use and to preserve the more 
interesting portions. 

 
N.B.: viability is not an issue for the appraisal 
document and any proposals to demolish 
would be subject to robust justification 
regardless of identification as LIBs or 
otherwise. Generally the former brewery 
buildings have historic character that still 
provides a historic reference that is of 
importance to the interest of the western infill 
character area and are worthy of 
identification as LIBs. ACTION: Suggest no 
change to assessment of Portcullis Site as a 
whole. 

Trevor Cotton Individual What about TPOs for 1) Trees in Castle 
Grounds. 2) Trees on N.side of 
Wallingford Bridge. 3) Bullcroft and 
Kinecroft. i.e: Significant trees to be 
considered. 
Not much change to existing conservation 
area but a most useful directory of existing 
buildings - copy in library? 
 

TPOs are a separate process that the 
appraisals are not responsible for. Their size 
already provides some protection with 
regard to works to them. If the trees are at 
specific risk from development then TPOs 
can be served where necessary.  
 
A consultation copy was in the Library and a 
hard-copy version can be made available to 
the Library if desired following successful 

P
age 56

A
genda Item

 7



13 
 

Don't forget foothpaths and paving to 
enhance and also vehicle emissions and 
erosion of qualities of all within the 
designated area. 

adoption. Electronic copies will be available 
online. 
 
The management plan deals with how 
preservation and enhancement of footpaths 
and paving is proposed. Vehicle emissions 
are not specifically mentioned and were not 
considered to impact the experience of the 
designated area to such an extent that 
certain areas are no longer used to the 
detriment of historic or architectural special 
interest. Suggest no changes. 

Theresa Jordan Individual I would like to see more buildings listed in 
the High Street, St Peter's St, Wood St 
and Castle Lane 
 
I would like to see the areas marked 
'deleted' to be retained especially at 
Wallingford School area. Please add to the 
'conservation area' but not remove any 
area. 
 

The LPA is not responsible for listing. 
Anyone can nominate a building for listing by 
the Secretary of State via Historic England 
designation team. 
 
Those areas for deletion have been 
considered with regard to preserving or 
enhancing what is significant about the 
conservation area. The area around 
Wallingford School has been redrawn to 
emphasise the significance of the scheduled 
monument designated area and does not 
alter that a large area of archaeological 
interest extends well beyond the designated 
areas. 

 

P
age 57

A
genda Item

 7



Appendix 3 

Track Changes version of amended pages of the Consultation Appraisal 
Document 

Page 58

Agenda Item 7



Wallingford Conservation Area Appraisal    Consultation Draft  October/November 2017 

Alteration to proposed 
conservation area boundary - 
see extract below 

Page 59

Agenda Item 7

SAV_AllenS_1
Textbox
Alteration to proposed boundary following public consultation



Wallingford Conservation Area Appraisal  Consultation Draft  October/November 2017 

Alteration to proposed 
conservation area boundary - 
see extract below

Page 60

Agenda Item 7

SAV_AllenS_2
Textbox
Alteration to proposed boundary following public consultation



Page 61

Agenda Item 7



Page 62

Agenda Item 7



Page 63

Agenda Item 7



Page 64

Agenda Item 7



Page 65

Agenda Item 7



Page 66

Agenda Item 7



Wallingford Conservation Area Appraisal    Consultation Draft  October/November 2017 

Alteration to proposed 
conservation area boundary - 
see extract below

Page 67

Agenda Item 7

SAV_AllenS_3
Textbox
Alteration to proposed boundary following public consultation



Wallingford Conservation Area Appraisal  Consultation Draft  October/November 2017 

Alteration to proposed 
conservation area boundary - 
see extract below

Page 68

Agenda Item 7

SAV_AllenS_4
Textbox
Alteration to proposed boundary following public consultation



Page 69

Agenda Item 7



Wallingford Conservation Area Appraisal  Consultation Draft  October/November 2017 

Alteration to proposed 
conservation area boundary - 
see extract below

Remove No.29 
Goldsmiths Lane 
from Local Interest 
Buildings list

Page 70

Agenda Item 7

SAV_AllenS_5
Textbox
Alteration to proposed boundary following public consultation



Wallingford Conservation Area Appraisal  Consultation Draft  October/November 2017 

Alteration to proposed 
conservation area boundary - 
see extract below

Page 71

Agenda Item 7

SAV_AllenS_6
Textbox
Alteration to proposed boundary following public consultation



Wallingford Conservation Area Appraisal  Consultation Draft  October/November 2017 

Alteration to proposed 
conservation area boundary - 
see extract below

Page 72

Agenda Item 7

SAV_AllenS_7
Textbox
Alteration to proposed boundary following public consultation



Definition: Burgage plots are long narrow plots of land in towns, 
generally laid out at right angles to main streets. The rear of the plots 
may be accessed by a back lane. They are so-called because 
burgage tenure was a particular form of property-holding in medieval 
towns which led to a pattern distinctive of medieval town planning.  
  
Within a block, plots may be of a uniform width (sometimes 20 feet). 
The main buildings, generally shops or houses, occupied the 
frontages, with the rear containing ancillary buildings, and open space 
which was often used for digging cess pits and rubbish pits. The 
boundaries between plots may remain marked by high stone or brick 
walls and there may be evidence of more land-intensive uses (cattle 
market, light industrial) being carried out here that would not be found 
on the main streets.  

Wallingford Conservation Area Appraisal  Consultation Draft  October/November 2017 

Alteration to proposed 
conservation area boundary - 
see extract below

Page 73

Agenda Item 7

SAV_AllenS_8
Textbox
Alteration to proposed boundary following public consultation



Wallingford Conservation Area Appraisal  Consultation Draft  October/November 2017 

Alteration to proposed 
conservation area boundary - 
see extract below

Page 74

Agenda Item 7

SAV_AllenS_9
Textbox
Alteration to proposed boundary following public consultation



Wallingford Conservation Area Appraisal  Consultation Draft  October/November 2017 

Alteration to proposed 
conservation area boundary - 
see extract below

Page 75

Agenda Item 7

SAV_AllenS_10
Textbox
Alteration to proposed boundary following public consultation



Wallingford Conservation Area Appraisal  Consultation Draft  October/November 2017 

Alteration to proposed 
conservation area boundary - 
see extract below

Page 76

Agenda Item 7

SAV_AllenS_11
Textbox
Alteration to proposed boundary following public consultation



Wallingford Conservation Area Appraisal  Consultation Draft  October/November 2017 

Alteration to proposed 
conservation area boundary - 
see extract below

Page 77

Agenda Item 7

SAV_AllenS_12
Textbox
Alteration to proposed boundary following public consultation



Page 78

Agenda Item 7



Page 79

Agenda Item 7



Page 80

Agenda Item 7



Cabinet Report

Report of Head of Planning
Author: Ricardo Rios
Telephone: 01235 422600
Textphone: 18001 01235 422600
E-mail: ricardo.rios@southandvale.gov.uk 

Wards affected: Berinsfield
Cabinet member responsible: Cllr. Felix Bloomfield
Tel: 01491 832690

E-mail: felix.bloomfield@southoxon.gov.uk

To: CABINET
Date: 05 April 2018

Making the Dorchester-on-Thames 
Neighbourhood Development Plan

That Cabinet recommends to Council:

1. To ‘make’ the Dorchester-on-Thames Neighbourhood Development Plan so that it 
continues to be part of the council’s development plan.

2. to delegate to the Head of Planning, in agreement with the Qualifying Body, the 
correction of any spelling, grammatical, typographical or factual errors together with 
any improvements from a presentational perspective.

Purpose of Report

1. To update the Cabinet on progress of the Dorchester-on-Thames Neighbourhood 
Development Plan and to present the relevant considerations in relation to whether the 
plan should be ‘made’ (formally adopted).

Corporate Objectives 

2. Strongly supporting the development of neighbourhood plans for our towns and 
villages.

CONFIDENTIAL

Page 81

Agenda Item 8

mailto:ricardo.rios@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:felix.bloomfield@southoxon.gov.uk


Background

3. Dorchester-on-Thames Parish Council successfully applied for Dorchester-on-Thames 
Parish to be designated as a Neighbourhood Area under the Neighbourhood Planning 
(General) Regulations (2012). 

4. The preparation of the Dorchester-on-Thames Neighbourhood Development Plan was 
led by Dorchester-on-Thames Parish Council (‘the qualifying body’) and a group of 
volunteers from the community. 

5. Following the formal submission of the Dorchester-on-Thames Neighbourhood 
Development Plan to the council, the plan was publicised and comments were invited 
from the public and stakeholders. The publicity period closed on 27 October 2017.

6. South Oxfordshire District Council appointed an independent examiner, Andrew 
Ashcroft, to review whether the plan met the basic conditions required by legislation 
and whether it should proceed to referendum. The examiner’s report concluded that the 
plan meets the basic conditions, and that subject to the modifications proposed in the 
report, the plan should proceed to referendum.

7. Having considered the examiner’s recommendations and reasons for them, the 
Cabinet Member for Planning decided on 19 December 2017: 

1. To accept all modifications recommended by the examiner; 

2. To determine that the plan, as modified, meets the basic conditions, is 
compatible with the Convention rights (within the meaning of the Human Rights 
Act 1998), complies with the definition of a neighbourhood development plan 
(NDP) and the provisions that can be made by a NDP; 

3. To take all appropriate actions to progress the plan to referendum on Thursday 
1 March (tbc). *** the date of the referendum was revised to 15 March 2018 
***; and

4. the referendum area should not extend beyond the neighbourhood area 
designated by the District Council on 07 June 2013.

8. The modifications were made and the referendum version of the plan was published on 
2 February 2018 alongside the decision statement required under Regulation 18(2)(a) 
of the Neighbourhood Planning (General) Regulations (2012). 

Options

9. The council’s options are limited by statute. Paragraph 38A (4)(a) of the Planning and 
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 sets out that the council must ‘make’ a neighbourhood 
plan if more than half of those voting at the referendum have voted in favour of the plan 
being used to help decide planning applications in the plan area.  

10.The only circumstance where the district council should not make this decision is where 
the making of the plan would breach, or would otherwise be incompatible with, any EU 
obligation or any of the Convention rights (within the meaning of the Human Rights Act 
1998).  

Page 82

Agenda Item 8



11.Section 3 of the Neighbourhood Planning Act 2017, which came into force on 19 July 
2017, amends section 38 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 to 
ensure that neighbourhood plans have full legal effect once they have passed their 
local referenda. In the very limited circumstances that the council might decide not to 
make the neighbourhood development plan, it will cease to be part of the development 
plan for the area.

12.The council’s decision on 19 December 2017 (referred to in paragraph 7) was 
published in the decision statement issued on 2 February 2018 (referred to in 
paragraph 8). It confirmed that the Dorchester-on-Thames Neighbourhood 
Development Plan, as modified by the Examiner’s recommendations, would not 
breach, and be otherwise incompatible with EU obligations or human rights legislation. 
Therefore, if the majority of those voting have voted in favour of the Dorchester-on-
Thames Neighbourhood Development Plan being used to help decide planning 
applications in the plan area, to not ‘make’ the plan would be in breach of these 
statutory provisions.

Referendum

13.A Referendum relating to the adoption of the Dorchester-on-Thames Neighbourhood 
Development Plan was held on Thursday 15 March 2018.

14.The question which was asked in the Referendum was: “Do you want South 
Oxfordshire District Council to use the Neighbourhood Plan for Dorchester-on-Thames 
to help it decide planning applications in the neighbourhood area?”

15.The result was as follows: 

a. Yes = 398 votes (95.9%) 

b. No = 17 votes (4.1%) 

c. Turnout = 51.6% 

16.The majority of local electors voted in favour of the plan; therefore, the Dorchester-on-
Thames Neighbourhood Plan has become part of the council’s development plan. 

17.As the plan was approved at the local referendum and the council is satisfied that the 
plan would not breach, and be otherwise incompatible with EU obligations or human 
rights legislation, the council is required ‘make’ the Dorchester-on-Thames 
Neighbourhood Development Plan so that it continues to be part of the council’s 
development plan. 

Financial Implications

18.There are no significant financial implications with this decision that cannot be 
accommodated within budget.

Legal Implications

19.The decision to ‘make’ the Dorchester-on-Thames Neighbourhood Development Plan 
is a legal requirement in the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.  The only 
circumstance where the district council should not make this decision is where the 
making of the plan would breach, or would otherwise be incompatible with, any EU 

Page 83

Agenda Item 8



obligation or any of the Convention rights (within the meaning of the Human Rights Act 
1998).  There is a requirement that the district council will publish a formal decision 
statement as required under the Neighbourhood Planning (General) Regulations 2012.

20. It is not considered that the neighbourhood plan would breach, or would otherwise be 
incompatible with, any such obligation or rights.  Therefore, the council should now 
proceed to make the plan.

Risks

21.The council is required to comply with the statutory requirements (to consider whether 
the plan should be made following a successful referendum), which this 
recommendation seeks to achieve. In view of the considerations referred to elsewhere 
in this report, as the majority of those voting have voted in favour of the plan at the 
local referendum, a decision not to make the Plan would place the council at risk of a 
legal challenge.

Conclusion

22.On the 19 December 2017, the council decided:

1. To accept all modifications recommended by the examiner; 
2. To determine that the plan, as modified, meets the basic conditions, is 

compatible with the Convention rights, complies with the definition of a 
neighbourhood development plan (NDP) and the provisions that can be made 
by a NDP; and 

3. To take all appropriate actions to progress the plan to referendum on Thursday 
1 March (tbc). *** the date of the referendum was revised to 15 March 2018 
***; and

4. the referendum area should not extend beyond the neighbourhood area 
designated by the District Council on 07 June 2013.

23.A referendum was held on 15 March 2018 to meet the requirements of The Localism 
Act 2011 and The Neighbourhood Planning (Referendums) Regulations 2012.  

24.As the majority of those voting have voted in favour of the plan being used to help 
decide planning applications in the plan area, it is recommended that the Dorchester-
on-Thames Neighbourhood Development Plan is ‘made’.   

Background Papers

None

Page 84

Agenda Item 8


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	6 Public space protection order for Thame
	Appendix A - draft order
	Appendix B - consultation feedback

	7 Wallingford Conservation Area
	Appendix 3

	8 Dorchester-on-Thames Neighbourhood Plan



